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PART 1 - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Item 1.Business 
 
(a) Description of Business 
 
(1) Business Development 
 
The Philodrill Corporation (the “Company”) was incorporated in 1969, originally, with the 
primary purpose of engaging in oil, gas and mineral exploration and development. In 1989, 
realizing the need to balance the risk associated with its petroleum activities, the Company 
changed its primary purpose to that of a diversified holding company while retaining petroleum 
and mineral exploration and development as one of its secondary purposes. Thereafter, the 
Company has maintained investments in petroleum exploration and production, financial 
services, property development, mining and infrastructure development. On January 16, 2008, 
stockholders representing at least two-thirds of the Company’s outstanding capital stock 
approved to change the Company’s primary purpose back to petroleum exploration and 
development and to relegate and include as a secondary purpose the Company’s holding 
company purpose clause, which the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved on 
April 13, 2009. 
 
With the Company’s corporate term expiring in 2019, an application for the amendment of its 
Articles of Incorporation was filed, extending its corporate term for another fifty (50) years. The 
SEC on January 18, 2018, approved The Philodrill Corporation’s amended Articles of 
Incorporation extending its corporate term for another fifty (50) years, from and after June 25, 
2019. 
 
The Company’s active petroleum projects cover production and exploration areas in offshore 
Palawan and onshore Mindoro under various Service Contracts (SC) with the Philippine 
government through the Department of Energy (DOE). 
 
In the financial services sector, the Company is a 40% shareholder of Penta Capital Investment 
Corporation (PCIC), an investment house. PCIC holds equity interest in several companies such 
as, Penta Capital Finance Corporation, a finance company (99% owned), Penta Capital Holdings 
Inc. (PCHI), an investment holding company (29.54% owned), Penta Capital Realty  
Corporation (100% owned) and Intra-Invest Securities, Inc. (68.47% owned). The Company also 
holds a 13.21% direct equity investment in PCHI. 
 
In the mining sector, the Company holds minor equity interests in the following companies: 
Atlas Consolidated Mining & Development Corporation (ACMDC) and United Paragon Mining 
Corporation. 
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PETROLEUM PROJECTS 

Service Contract 6A (Octon) 
Towards the end of CY 2019, Philodrill entered a Proof of Concept (POC) agreement with 
Malaysia-based LMKR for a Seismic Inversion and Reservoir Characterization study of the 
Galoc Clastic Unit (GCU), the primary reservoir target at the northern block of the Service 
Contract.  The POC work using LMKR’s QI work flow able to discriminate the thin sands of the 
GCU.  Four potential sand bodies meriting further investigation identified.  A decision was made 
to progress the POC work to a full-scale Seismic Inversion and Reservoir Characterization 
project (LMKR work). 
 
The 2020 Work Program and Budget (2020 WP&B) was amended to include the LMKR work in 
place of the well plan design/costing studies originally contemplated for the year’s work 
program.  Because of the COVID-19 situation, the amended SC6A 2020 WP&B was approved 
by the SC 6A Joint Venture (JV) only in June for submission to the Department of Energy 
(DOE). The DOE eventually approved the 2020 WP&B in July. 
 
The LMKR work commenced by mid-September.  Expecting project completion by mid-
December, Philodrill requested for an extension on the submission date of the 2021 Work 
Program and Budget (2021 WP&B).  The request was made to enable an initial assessment of 
the LMKR work results upon completion before deciding on the forward program for the block. 
The DOE approved the request and extended the submission date to the end of January of 2021.  
 
The LMKR work was completed on the 18th of December, successfully evaluating key reservoir 
units.  Separate facies (pay sands, wet sands, and shale) for the GCU were identified through 
elastic properties modeling.  The stochastic inversion, used to characterize the thinly bedded 
sands of GCU, generated promising results highlighting potential areas of key interest in the 
vicinity of the Malajon-1 well.  Zones exhibiting a high probability of pay were identified within 
the GCU and are considered plausible locations for well drilling.  The Fluid Replacement Model 
(FRM) Analysis of the clastic unit indicated the likely presence of gas in the reservoir.  At year-
end, the seismic inversion volumes and all data generated from the project were being readied 
for shipment to Philodrill. 
 
The dramatic collapse in oil prices brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic impacted on the 
production operations at the Galoc Field.  This in turn resulted in the indefinite suspension of the 
on-going farm-in negotiations with GPC/Tamarind Resources, operator of the field, for the 
potential development of Octon Field as a tie-back to Galoc.   
 
In the early part of 2020, Philodrill received an expression of interest from NWP Ventures Ltd., 
an affiliate of Manta Oil, operator of SC 6B (Cadlao) for a possible farm-in at the north block of 
the SC. A Confidentiality Agreement (CA), granting access to the technical data in the area, was 
executed in February and data transmittal was completed only in early July due to the ECQ and 
lockdown.  As the year ended, no significant progress on NWP Ventures’ interest to farm-in has 
been made.  
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Service Contract 6B (Bonita/Cadlao) 

During the year, Manta Oil Corporation (MOC) completed a comprehensive technical 
subsurface review using the 2016 PSTM reprocessed 3D seismic data.  The recent subsurface 
mapping work on the Cadlao structure resulted in an improved P50 STOIIP estimate of 15% 
from previous volumetrics.   
 
Several tender processes to select potential service providers for the Cadlao Redevelopment 
Project were carried out in 2020.  Major service contractors were identified based on competitive 
bids submitted for the Phase 1 work (well design and planning), facilities design that includes 
Simultaneous Operations (SIMOPS) planning and installation execution plan, and for the 3D 
seismic Pre-Stack Depth Migrated (PSDM) reprocessing. 
 
At year-end, MOC has yet to select a contractor for the detailed bathymetric survey that will 
cover the Cadlao Field and the East Cadlao structure.  Proposals for the environmental and 
permitting work, oil spill contingency have been received from a local service provider, albeit 
with uncertainty on the timing of project execution due to the continuing COVID 19 
situation/restrictions in the country.  A Certificate of Energy Project of National Significance 
(CEPNS) will be sought from the DOE to fast-track government approvals that will be required 
for redevelopment program of Cadlao. 
 
MOC will follow through with the execution of the above projects in 2021 as contemplated 
under the 2021 WP&B with an estimated total cost of USD 3.028 MM.  The 2021 WP&B was 
submitted on the 6th of November 2020. 
 
Following MOC’s informal market consultation in Q1 2020, it has become apparent that a 
Floating Production, Storage and Offloading (FPSO) operation model will be the most 
commercially attractive option for the Cadlao redevelopment project.  MOC is looking at an 
FPSO vessel that can be available for first oil in Q1 2023 provided that binding agreements are 
put in place by September 2021.  A Letter of Intent (LOI) with the vessel owner is expected to 
be executed by Q1 2021.  
 
The dramatic oil price collapse and the general lack of engagement from suppliers and 
contractors as well as the slowdown in commercial discussions with third parties due to the 
COVID 19 situation resulted in a significant delay in the preparation of the new Plan of 
Development (POD) for Cadlao.  The delivery of the new POD, originally contemplated for 
submission in March of 2021, will be pushed back to the end of 2021.  Accordingly, MOC 
submitted a formal notification/request to the DOE on this matter.   
 
Both the 2021 WP&B and the request for the push-back on the submission of the POD have yet 
to be approved by the DOE as the year ended.  

 

Service Contract No. 14 (Nido/Matinloc) 
During Q1 2020, Philodrill continued to prepare for the plug and abandonment (P&A) work on 
the Nido A-1 and Nido A-2 scheduled for April 2020.  The P&A of the 2 wells will complete the 
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campaign to abandon the Nido and Matinloc production areas in SC 14.  On March 9, 2020, the 
P&A work program and budget was approved by the DOE.  However, by mid-March, the entire 
P&A program had to be suspended following the imposition of the ECQ due to the COVID 19 
situation, that effectively restricted mobilization of the P&A vessel and travel of personnel for 
the conduct of the P&A operations.  
 
The P&A operation was reprogrammed for September 2020.  A slight increase in the P&A 
budget resulting from the deferment of the P&A execution was eventually approved by the Joint 
Venture and the DOE.  
 
The P&A vessel ENA Wizard was mobilized on September 20 from Singapore.  Despite some 
delays due to the strict requirement by the Singaporean, Malaysian and Philippine authorities for 
all the P&A technical crew to undergo rigid COVID-19 testing and quarantine, the P&A work 
was completed within budget of the reprogrammed P&A work and without any incidents on the 
5th of October 2020. 
 
After completing the P&A work at the platform, the ENA Wizard and Filipino crew were 
immediately demobilized.   The Filipino crew underwent post-P&A operations quarantine/swab 
test and upon return of negative results from the swab test, were released and brought back to 
their respective residences.  The ENA Wizard sailed back to Singapore and was officially off 
hire on October 14.   
 
The DOE, in their letter of November 24, 2020, certified that the P&A work on the Nido A1 and 
A2 wells complied with the work program and budget. 
 
In line with the cessation of operations and the abandonment of the Nido and Matinloc 
production areas, the custody of the Nido and Matinloc platforms, stripped of production 
equipment, was transferred to the DOE and in turn, was donated by the DOE to the Department 
of National Defense (DND). The Deed of Donation and Assumption (DODA) between the DOE 
and the DND was executed on the 26th of June 2020.  
 
The sale of the scrap materials stored at the Mabini Energy Supply Base (ESB) which were 
stripped from the platforms underwent bidding through DOE-authorized third-party auctioneer.  
The bidding process was completed in June and the proceeds from the sale have been turned 
over to the DOE for auditing by their Compliance Division.  The lease for the warehouse at the 
Energy Base in Mabini was terminated as of November 2020. 
 
At year-end, the SC 14 consortia was in the process of approving a joint resolution for the 
abandonment and surrender of the service contracts covering the Tara, Libro, Pandan, Nido, 
Matinloc, and North Matinloc production areas including the retention block.  Once approved, a 
formal notice of surrender of the production areas and termination of the service contracts will 
be submitted to the DOE. Closure of the production operations in Mandaluyong is scheduled by 
March of 2021 subject to completion of DOE audit on the JV account and turn-over of records to 
Philodrill. 
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Service Contract No. 14 C-1 (Galoc) 

Production operations at the Galoc field maintained a high level of efficiency throughout 2020 
despite the operational challenges presented by the COVID 19 pandemic.  The production 
operations achieved 0% unplanned downtime resulting in 694,673 barrels of oil produced at 
year-end against the 688,000 barrels that were forecasted in the 2020 WP&B.  Three offtakes 
with a total cargo of 750,000 BBLS were delivered.  Stable production was received from the 
G3, G5 and G6.  The G3 well, which has been on cyclic production, was effectively managed 
and continued to contribute an average of 150 to 200 BPD to the field’s total production output.  
The G4 well remained offline since January 2019.  
 
The effect of the low oil price environment that followed the oil price crash in the latter part of 
Q1 was successfully addressed by renegotiating key contracts resulting in significant cost 
savings for the consortium.  The organizational restructuring of the Galoc Production Company 
(GPC)/Tamarind group resulted in lowering the GPC OPEX cost.  
 
The premature termination of the FPSO vessel contract with Rubicon Offshore International 
(ROI), which could have led to field production operation cessation/suspension was likewise 
mitigated. On March 17, 2020, ROI served notice to GPC that it was terminating the FPSO 
contract with production to cease on September 24, 2020.  The implementation of a new FPSO 
operating model with a new operator, Three60 Energy, and new vessel owner was able to 
prevent the suspension of production and in the process lowered the field’s break-even oil price 
at 1,900 BPD from USD 48.00/BBL to less than USD 35/BBL towards the last quarter of 2020.  
Separate resolutions for the continued Galoc production operations beyond September 24, 2020, 
and to authorize GPC to execute a new bareboat charter agreement for the FPSO Intrepid with 
the new owner were approved by the SC 14 C1 (Galoc) JV. 
 
On the 14th of September, GPC2 (Kufpec) withdrew from the Joint Operating Agreement (JOA) 
and the SC. GPC2’s Participating Interest (PI) was assigned to the continuing parties of the SC.  
Philodrill, NidoPhils. Galoc Pty. Ltd (Nido) and Forum accepted their pro-rata share of the 
GPC2 PI.  Both GPC1 (Tamarind) and Oriental declined to accept their pro-rate share resulting 
in additional PI being assigned to Nido.  Philodrill’s PI in SC 14C1 was increased from 
7.21495% to 10.17782%.  On the 23rd of December, GPC resigned as operator and nominated 
Nido, which recently changed its name to NPG Pty Ltd. (NPG), as the successor operator. 
 

Parties Participating Interests  

pre-Kufpec Withdrawal (%) 

Participating Interests 

post-Kufpec Withdrawal (%) 

GPC1 (Tamarind) 33.00000 33.00000

GPC2 (Kufpec) 26.84473 0

NIDO (renamed to NPG) 22.87952 45.82683

Oriental 7.78505 7.78505

Philodrill 7.21495 10.17782

Forum 2.27575 3.21030

Total 100.00000 100.00000
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During the year, a full-field review study for the reappraisal of Galoc reservoir was completed.  
The review indicated 7.0 MM BBLs of technically recoverable oil left in Galoc.  The continued 
review and planning for the G4 well restart resulted in a more mature/de-risked program that 
will be implemented during the weather window in Q1/Q2 2021.  The restart plan will entail the 
gas lift technique through continuous flow/injection of nitrogen (N2) into the wellbore.  The 
latest Galoc reservoir model now predicts an additional 800 BPD (gross) can be expected from 
the G4 if the restart is successful and G4 is maintained online. 
 
The CRU Project remained on hold because of the prohibitive installation cost due to low oil 
prices and uncertainty on longevity of production until the G4 well is re-started and shown to be 
flowing stably. 
 
The 2021 Operations Work Program and Budget (2021 WP&B) was presented for approval 
during the 9th of December Operating Committee Meeting (OCM).  The proposed budget of 
USD 23.4 MM plus a contingent budget of USD 1.184 MM for the potential restart operations of 
the G4 well was approved by the SC 14C1 (Galoc) JV.   
 

Service Contract No. 14 C-2 (West Linapacan) 

The SC’s Provisional WP&B included the Phase 2 of the Joint Quantitative Interpretation work 
with the SC 74 JV.  However, after the release of the results of the preceding Phase 1A and its 
evaluation, the SC 14C2 JV decided not to proceed with Phase 2 of the project.  Following the 
JV’s decision, a revised, firm WP&B was to be submitted to the DOE in the early part of 2020. 
The submission of the firm WP&B was overtaken by the JV’s entry into a Sale-Purchase 
Agreement (SPA) and Farm-out Agreement (FOA) with Desert Rose Petroleum Ltd (DRPL), an 
independent oil & gas production, development and exploration company, for the redevelopment 
of the West Linapacan Field.  
 
The FOA and the SPA were signed on 7 January 2020.  With the agreements in place, the Deed 
of Assignment (DOA) process was initiated.  In consideration of the Farminee's/Purchaser's 
eventual take- over of SC operatorship, the JV decided to give way to the work program that the 
Farminee/Purchaser will include in the document submission to the DOE for the approval of the 
DOA arising from the Agreements. The process, however, was significantly delayed by the 
COVID 19 situation.  
 
Despite the absence of a formally approved WP&B for 2020, Philodrill completed the technical 
evaluation of the West Linapacan B structure.  A final report of the work was included in the 
26th of August submission of the SC 14C2 accomplishment report to the DOE. 
 
In early November, a Letter of Agreement to propose the setting of a breakaway date for the 
SPA/FIA transactions was submitted by DRPL to the JV.  The break-away date proposed was 
March 31, 2021, at which time the SPA/FIA transactions will terminate should DRPL fail to 
submit the required documents to secure the approval by the DOE for the transfer of the Sale 
Working Interests and the transfer of operatorship under the terms of the JOA. 
 
While no formal decision was immediately reached by the JV pending further review, the 
partners see the rationality of the Breakaway Agreement.  There was a consensus among the 
partners to come up with a counterproposal to include a provision for an earnest/goodwill money 
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in the Letter of Agreement.  This will defray some of the costs of the 2020 WP&B that the JV 
had to commit to the DOE which should have already been the responsibility of DRPL if the 
DOA process had been on schedule.  In a recent amendment to the Letter of Agreement, DRPL 
proposed amending the SPA to reflect a purchase price of USD 19,260 from the nominal USD 
100.  This amount covers a portion of the WP&B that was submitted to the DOE.   
 
To comply with the obligations under the SC while continuing to finalize the DOA process, 
Philodrill submitted, while very much delayed, a 2020 WP&B covering the period from 
November 2020 spilling over to the end of March 2021. The submitted WP&B with a budget of 
USD 38,400.00 will provide for the continued geological and geophysical work and 
administrative costs to the end of March 2021, at which time, it is contemplated that there will 
be clarity on the DOA process and the JV will be able to decide on what action to take for the 
follow-on programs for the SC.  The WP&B was approved by the DOE on December 2, 2020. 
 

Service Contract No. 53 (Onshore Mindoro) 
The DOE continued with the evaluation of the merits of the Motion for Reconsideration (MR) 
on the termination of the SC that the non-operator partners, Philodrill, Anglo, and Basic filed in 
June 2019.  In a meeting held on the 9th of January 2020, the DOE agreed in principle that they 
will give due course to the continuing partners’ appeal subject to a reconstitution of the JV and 
submission of technical and financial documentation.  
 
Philodrill continued to administer the SC while the MR is being evaluated by the DOE.  This 
included managing the upkeep of the Progreso-2 Long Lead Items (LLIs) and the settlement of 
outstanding obligations and renewal of lease for the open yard and warehouse at the ESB in 
Mabini, Batangas where the LLIs are stored. 
 
Given the uncertainty on the timing of the DOE approval of the MR to continue with the SC 
operations, the disposal by sale of the Progreso-2 LLIs was made to avoid further deterioration 
of the items and the continued costs for storage.  The base sale price was based on the valuation 
undertaken with ACE Tubulars in November 2019.   Three offers on an “as-is-where-is” basis 
were received, with Felpet Trading providing the most competitive bid.  The partners, in a 
resolution made in February, approved the sale of the LLIs to Felpet Trading following the 
completion of the DOE inspection of the inventory.  The sale was concluded in April but the 
pull-out of the LLIs had to wait until early June because of restricted access to the Supply Base 
during the COVID-19 lockdown.  The lease agreement for the warehouse and the open yard was 
terminated effective June. 
 
On February 28, 2020, Basic notified the DOE of its withdrawal from the MR.  This was 
followed by their March 10, 2020 letter to the partners informing the same and the settlement of 
their remaining liabilities to the consortium.  Basic’s withdrawal resulted in the restructuring of 
the   Participating Interests that will take effect once the MR is approved by the DOE. 
 
 

Parties Participating Interests 

pre-Basic Withdrawal 
(%) 

Participating Interests 

post-Basic Withdrawal 
(%) 
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Philodrill and Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation, as the remaining joint venture partners, 
submitted to the DOE on August 25 a compendium of updated legal, technical, and financial 
documentation as proof of capability to pursue the remaining work commitments of SC 53.  A 
Participation Agreement executed by both parties formed part of the submission including the 
proposed forward work program and budget for the Onshore Mindoro Block.  The proposed 
forward program for the block has a budget estimate of USD 5.2 MM to fund the required 
activities to drill the Progreso-2 well within the remaining period of the exploration phase of the 
SC. 
 
The MR was finally approved on January 11, 2021.  In its letter, the DOE continues to recognize 
that the SC is under moratorium. With a secure title to the SC, the JV can now work on 
obtaining the Certificate of Precondition (CP) from the National Commission on Indigenous 
People (NCIP) and move forward with the necessary works for the appraisal of the Progreso gas 
discovery. At the same time, efforts will be made to invite other interested companies for 
possible participation in the SC. 
 

Service Contract No. 74 (Linapacan) 
PXP Energy’s (PXP) request for a one-year extension of the current Sub-Phase (SP) 3 to until 
December 13, 2020, was approved by the DOE on March 12, 2020.  The extension was 
requested to enable the JV to complete the on-going technical evaluation works before deciding 
to enter the succeeding SP4 that requires a well commitment. 
 
The SC 74 JV continued to the Phase 2 Joint Impedance Facies Inversion (JiFi) of the 
Quantitative Interpretation (QI) work with IKON Science.  With the SC14C2 (West Linapacan) 
opting out of Phase 2 of the project, the SC 74 JV proceeded with the original total area 
coverage of 400 sq. km covering portions of the West Linapacan area since reducing the size of 
the coverage area does not result to a significant reduction in cost.  The QI work commenced on 
February 10, 2020 and was completed in mid-June.  The project completion was delayed for 1.5 
months because of the challenges from working remotely during the COVID-19 lockdown and 
restrictions on office operations.   
 
The main objective of the QI study was to use IKON’s JiFi workflow to predict the distribution 
of facies and fluids in the area. Also, the study is aimed to generate a porosity model over the 
400sqkm area of interest. 
 
Because of the nature of the properties of the Linapacan Limestone and the poor to moderate 
quality of the seismic data, the JiFi workflow was unable to predict the distribution of fluids 
within the Linapacan Limestone reservoir with confidence.  Hence, the study focused on 
predicting the distribution of the different facies.  Despite the challenges encountered, the JiFi 

Philodrill 73.33333 81.48 

Anglo 16.66667 18.52 

Basic 10.00000 0.00 

Total 100.00000 100.00 
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process managed to adequately predict lithological facies at the wells and allowed a porosity 
model to be derived over the area. 
 
The shipment of the external drive containing the QI study deliverables suffered delays at the 
Bureau of Customs.  The data package was received by PXP on the 7th of September, 3 months 
after the shipment date.   
 
Because of the continuing COVID-19 situation, most of the seismic interpretation work to 
incorporate the results of the QI was done remotely.  A workflow was formulated to thoroughly 
map the good porosity zones indicated in the QI study and a short-term subscription for the 
VuPak module of the seismic interpretation software (Kingdom™) was acquired to assist in 
visualizing the identified stratigraphic plays being mapped. 
 
The biostratigraphic and geochemistry analyses of rock samples from the Calamian Islands were 
progressed after the successful completion of a pilot study.  The project included additional rock 
samples that were analyzed for palynology, radiolarian age dating, Total Organic Content with 
Rock-eval Pyrolysis, Vitrinite Reflectance, and Kerogen Typing.  
 
The macroscopic analysis and the issuance of the export permit for shipping to CoreLab 
Malaysia by the Mines and Geosciences Bureau (MGB) was delayed because of the ECQ that 
was implemented all over Luzon, starting 16 March 2020. The permit and samples were released 
on 20 July 2020 after encountering delays due to several lockdowns implemented at the MGB 
Office caused by COVID-19.  Twenty-three (23) samples were submitted to CoreLab for the 
study. Palynology and Radiolarian-based Age Dating were conducted in CoreLab, Malaysia 
while all geochemistry samples were forwarded to their Houston, Texas laboratory.  The 
analyses were completed on 28 October 2020.  A draft consolidated report was submitted by 
Core Laboratories (CoreLab) on 30 November 2020. At year-end, project completion is pending 
CoreLab’s submission of a final project report. 
 
Because of the delays in the completion of the work programs, a request was submitted to the 
DOE for the imposition of a Force Majeure over SC 74 for nine (9) months starting from 13 
March 2020 to 12 December 2020, citing the negative impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on 
business operations and implementation of SC 74 work activities. The request was approved in 
July 2020, resulting to an extension of the sub-phase to September 2021.  The SC 74 2021 
WP&B of USD 342,286 was approved by the DOE on 17 November 2020.   
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SULU SEA (PCECP Area 7) 
The exploration block, one of the 14 pre-determined areas offered by the DOE under the 
Philippine Conventional Energy Contracting Program (PCECP), is under the jurisdiction of the 
Bangsamoro Autonomous Region in Muslim Mindanao (BARMM).  The lone application for 
the area, jointly submitted by Philodrill and PXP Energy qualified for further technical, legal, 
and financial evaluation.  The DOE, however, placed in abeyance the processing and awarding 
of service contract applications/bids and approval of energy projects in areas under the 
jurisdiction of the BARMM until an Executive Order (EO), that will clarify the extent of 
BARMM‘s participation and entitlements from energy contracts within Bangsamoro 
autonomous region, is signed by the President.   
 
The year 2020 ended with Philodrill continuing to await DOE advice on the awarding of Area 7 
and all other areas covered by the BARMM. 
 

SWAN Block (Deepwater Northwest Palawan) 
Despite the inclusion of the SWAN Block in NW Palawan in the first edition of the Philippine 
Energy Contracting Round in 2004, the SWAN Block consortium did not receive any 
notification from the DOE rescinding the GSEC application which the consortium later 
converted into a full-service contract application. However, the DOE granted instead new 
service contracts that both partially covered the area being applied for. PNOC-EC’s SC-57 and 
SC-58 were awarded in September 2005 and January 2006, respectively. From 2007 and up to 
the time of writing, the Parent Company’s continued attempt to acquire equity in SCs 57 and 58 
by swap or farm-in but has so far been unsuccessful.  Philodrill’s exploration group believes that 
the Company should now focus its resources on its more prospective and potentially less costly 
projects. The Group has recognized an impairment loss of P99.4 million as at December 31, 
2020. 
 
Additional information required by Item 1 (a) is also contained in Notes 7 and11 to the 
Company’s 2020Audited Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 
 
The Company’s associates are PCIC, PCHI and ACMDC, where the Company has 40%, 13.21% 
and 0.53% equity interest, respectively. In December 2015, the Company entered into a Joint 
Voting Agreement with Alakor Corporation, National Book Store, Inc. and Anglo Philippine 
Holdings Corporation, collectively known as the Ramos Group, to jointly vote their shares in 
ACMDC in all matters affecting their rights as stockholders effective January 1, 2015. As of 
December 31, 2020, the combined interest of the parties to the agreement represents 43.01% 
interest in ACMDC. 
 
PCIC posted a total comprehensive income of P33.0 million in 2020, 70% lower than the 2019 
comprehensive income of P110.0 million. Gross revenues amounted to P132.3million in 2020 as 
compared to P215.5 million in 2019. 

  
PCHI’s net income decreased to P26.3 million in 2020 from P41.3 million in 2019. Gross 
revenues amounted to P76.9 million in 2020 as compared to P81.1 million in 2019.  
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ACMDC’s comprehensive loss amounted to P849.6 million in 2020, as compared to P692.4 
million in 2019. Gross revenues amounted to P17.5 billion in 2020 and P16.2 billion in 2019. 
 
Additional information is also contained in Note 9 to the Company’s 2020Audited Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 
 
The Company has no direct equity interest in Penta Capital Finance Corporation and as such, no 
disclosure on its business development was made. 
 
No bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceeding has been filed by or against the Company 
during the last three (3) years. 
 
No material reclassification, merger, consolidation, or purchase/sale of a significant amount of 
assets not in the ordinary course of business has been undertaken by the Company during the last 
three (3) years. 
 
(2) Business of Issuer 
(a) Description of Registrant 

(1) Principal products or services and their markets -The Company and other participants 
(collectively referred to as “Contractor”), entered into several SCs with the Philippine 
government through the DOE, for the exploration, development and exploitation  of the 
contract areas situated mostly in offshore Palawan where oil discoveries  have been 
made. The aforementioned SCs provide for certain minimum work expenditure 
obligations and the drilling of a specified number of wells and are covered by operating 
agreements which set forth the participating interests, rights and obligations of the 
contractor.  

 
The Company’s share in the jointly controlled assets of the SCs is included under the 
“Wells, platforms and other facilities” and “Deferred oil exploration costs” accounts in 
the statements of financial position. The Company follows full cost method of 
accounting for all exploration costs relating to each SC. These costs are deferred 
pending determination of whether the contract area contains oil and gas in commercial 
quantities. The exploration costs relating to the SC area where oil and gas in commercial 
quantities are discovered are subsequently capitalized as “Wells, platforms and other 
facilities” shown under “Property and equipment” account in the statement of financial 
position upon commercial production. When the SC is permanently abandoned or the 
Company has withdrawn from the consortium, the related deferred oil exploration costs 
are written-off. Reserves are estimated by reference to available reservoir and well 
information, including production and pressure trends for producing reservoirs.  
 
All proven reserve estimates are subject to revision, either upward or downward, based 
on new information, such as from development drilling and production activities or from 
changes in economic factors, including product prices, contract terms or development 
plans. As a field goes into production, the amount of proven reserves will be subject to 
future revision once additional information becomes available. As those fields are 
further developed, new information may lead to revisions. Additional information 
required by Item 1 (2) (a) is also contained on Notes 8 and 11 to the Company’s 
2020Audited Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company’s present revenues and 
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production and related expenses are from certain areas of SC 14 particularly Nido, 
Matinloc, North Matinloc and Galoc. The crude oil revenues from these oilfields 
contributed about 88% of the total gross revenues. 
 
Information as to production volume follows (in barrels): 

 2020 2019 2018 

Galoc(net) 690,946 737,755 1,152,943 
Nido 0 20,641 51,749 
Matinloc 0 1,551 43,040 
Total 690,946 759,948 1,247,732 

 
The Company also generates revenues from its equity investments by way of dividends 
received from, and/or equitizable share in the earnings of investee companies. Equitized 
earnings from affiliates constituted about 17% of the total gross revenues. 

 
Investee Companies. The Company is a 40% shareholder of PCIC, an investment house. 
Aside from investment banking and financial advisory services, PCIC also specializes in 
providing securitization services, short-term bridge financing facilities and assistance in 
raising working capital funds. 

 
The Company also has investment in PCHI with investment holdings in real estate, 
financial and securities transactions. The Company has a 13.21% ownership in PCHI. 
PCIC also has 29.54% ownership interest in PCHI, making the Company’s effective 
ownership in PCHI at 25.03%. 
 
The Company has 0.53% minor equity interest in ACMDC, as of December 31, 2020, 
together with the other companies in the Ramos Group, the combined interest represents 
43.01% in ACMDC. 
 

 ACMDC is engaged in metallic mineral and mining exploration, and currently produces 
 copper concentrate (with gold and silver), magnetite iron ore concentrate and laterite 
 nickel. 
 

(2) Percentage of sales or revenues and net income contributed by foreign sales- SC14C-1 
crude oil were sold to foreign companies, the following are the percentages contributed 
by foreign sales:  

   
2020 2019 2018 

Gross petroleum revenue 89% 78% 62% 
Net operating loss 27% 46% 102% 

 

 
(3) Distribution Method of the Products or Service- For SC14C-1 consortium, the operator 

GPC sold the crude oil to several foreign firms. The proceeds from the sale of crude oil 
were distributed by the operator to the different consortium members in accordance with 
their respective participating interests. For SC14 Blocks A, B and B-1 consortium, the 
last oil produced from these areas was sold to Pilipinas Shell in March 2019. 
 

(4) Status of any new product or service - There are NO new products or services. 
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(5) Competition-For SC14C-1, crude oil production for 2019 was sold to foreign firms, 
Trafigura Pte Ltd.,Vitol Asia Pte., Ltd. continued to act as a marketing agent for the 
SC14C-1 consortium. Competition for market of petroleum does not have a 
significant bearing in the operations of the Company. Crude oil production from 
SC14 A, B & B-1 (Nido, Matinloc and North Matinloc) were all sold to Pilipinas 
Shell. The Company’s crude sales agreement with Pilipinas Shell was in effect up to 
the first quarter of 2019, when the final lifting for Nido field was made last March 
2019. 

 
In the upstream local industry, group of companies form consortiums to explore 
certain areas. The DOE awards SCs to technically and financially capable 
companies based on competitive bidding. The Company competes in the acquisition 
of exploration rights with foreign firms and local exploration companies namely, 
PNOC-EC, Oriental Petroleum and Minerals Corporation, PetroEnergy Resources 
Corporation, NidoProduction (Galoc) Pty. Ltd., Forum Energy Phils. Corporation. 
Competition in the acquisition of exploration rights also gives opportunities for 
partnership between local and foreign companies.  

 
 The Company is a recognized leader in the local petroleum industry. The Company 

is financially strong and the technical expertise of its staff is recognized by the 
DOE. The Company remains a strong player in the local exploration and production 
industry. 

 
(6) Sources and availability of raw materials - Not applicable 

 
(7) Dependence on One or a Few Major Customers and Identification of Such- 
 
a) Petroleum Revenue - production from Galoc which is 89% of the total gross 

revenues were sold to foreign firm Trafigura Pte Ltd..Vitol Asia Pte., Ltd. continued 
to act as a marketing agent for the SC14C-1 consortium.  

 
b) Investment Income - the Company’s equity share in associates’ earnings is 

dependent on the financial performance of its investee company, PCIC, PCHI and 
ACMDC. 

 
(8) Transactions with and/or Dependence on Related Parties - the information required 

is contained on Note 16 to the Company’s 2020 Audited Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

 
(9) Patents, Trademarks, Licenses, Franchises, Concessions, Royalty Agreements, or 

Labor Contracts, including Duration-The Company is a member of the following 
valid and subsisting Petroleum SCs, either in its capacity as Operator or Consortium 
Member: 

 

Service Contract No. Location Expiry 
Company’s Capacity 

(as of December 31, 2020)
6A Octon Block NorthWest Palawan February 2024 Operator 
6B Bonita Block NorthWest Palawan February 2024 Consortium Member
14A Nido Block NorthWest Palawan December 2025 Operator
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14B Matinloc Block NorthWest Palawan December 2025 Operator
14B-1 North Matinloc NorthWest Palawan December 2025 Operator
14 Tara Block NorthWest Palawan December 2025 Consortium Member
14C-1 Galoc Block NorthWest Palawan December 2025 Consortium Member
14C-2 West Linapacan NorthWest Palawan December 2025 Operator
14D Retention Block NorthWest Palawan December 2025 Operator
53 Onshore Mindoro Mindoro July 2055 Operator
74 Linapacan NorthWest Palawan August 2063 Consortium Member

 
(10) Government Approvals – The Company is a participant in various SCs with the 

Philippine government through the DOE which provide for certain minimum work 
expenditure obligations and drilling of a specified number of wells and are covered 
by operating agreements which set forth the participating interests, rights and 
obligations of the Contractor. 

 
(11) Effect of Existing or Probable Governmental Regulations on the Business - 

Existing government regulations do not adversely affect the business of the 
Company. We are not aware of any probable government regulation that may 
adversely affect the business of the Company and its subsidiary. 

 
(12) Estimate of Amount Spent for Research and Development Activities - The 

Company incurs expenses in the oil exploration projects wherein the Company is a 
participant, expense on the evaluation and studies on these projects form part of 
deferred costs. 

 
The following are the expenses incurred for the last three (3) years: 

Year Amount
2020 P12.8M 
2019 P15.8M
2018 P15.0M

 
(13) Costs and Effects of Compliance with Environmental Laws - Compliance with 

the environmental laws has not, and is not anticipated to adversely affect the 
businesses and financial condition of the Company. Petroleum service contractors 
are mandated to comply with all environmental laws in phases of exploration and 
production operations. The Company did not directly incur any expenses for such 
activities during the last three (3) years. Any costs of compliance with 
environmental laws will either be charged as ordinary operating expense or 
capitalized as part of project investment.  

 
(14) Employees- As at December 31, 2020, the Company had 26 employees.  

 

Type of employee 
Exploration/ 

Technical 

Finance/ 
Administration 
Legal/Stocks

Executive Officers - 
Administrative 

 
1

 
3 

AVP, Managers - 
Technical/Operations 

 
2

 
3 

Rank and File - Clerical 5 12 
Total 8 18 
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The present employees are not subject to Collective Bargaining Agreement. For the 
past three (3) years, there had not been any strike threat. All regular officers and 
employees are entitled to supplemental benefits as provided under the applicable labor 
laws and existing Company’s schedule of benefits (i.e. leaves, medical and other cash 
aid programs, bonuses, retirement, life/hospitalization insurances and others).  
The Company will continue to provide such benefits within the ensuing twelve (12) 
months.The Company does not anticipate hiring additional personnel within the 
ensuing twelve (12) months. 

 
(15) Major risk/s involved in each of the business of the company and subsidiaries- 

Information required by this Item is contained in Note 22 to the Company’s 2020 
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements. Note 22 discussed the risks factors 
namely: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk which includes foreign currency risk 
and equity price risk. In addition we would like to disclose the following risks: 

 
Commodity price risk – The Company’s petroleum revenues are based on 
international commodity quotations (i.e. primarily on the average Dubai oil prices) 
over which the Company has no significant influence or control. This exposes the 
Company’s results of operations to commodity price volatilities that may 
significantly impact its cash inflows. However, the Company is exerting its efforts 
in reducing operating costs in order to counteract any decrease in commodity price. 

 
Production risk -The Company’s crude oil production from the Galoc field may 
experience decline that are due to normal reserve depletion, production shutdown, 
adverse weather condition and problems relating to availability of vessels. In the 
Galoc field, the SC14C-1 consortium upgraded the mooring and riser system 
(M&RS) of the FPSO which involved the installation of a revolving external turret 
on the bow of the FPSO. The installed turret practically eliminated the need for the 
risky and costly disconnection of the M&RS during adverse weather conditions and 
its subsequent reconnection which in the past had resulted in expensive damage and 
prolonged operating downtimes. Because of the improved M&RS system, the Galoc 
operations attained close to 100% process uptime in 2020.For SC14 A&B blocks, 
production activities were all terminated, with the Matinloc finally stopping 
commercial production in February 2019 and the Nido field in March 2019. 

 
(b) Additional Requirements as to Certain Issues or Issuers 

(a) Debt issues - Not applicable 
(b) Investment Company Securities - Not applicable 
(c) Mining and Oil Companies -In line with its primary business purpose, the Company 

remains a participant in certain petroleum exploration projects. The amount of the 
Company’s interests in these contracts and a brief description of the areas and status of 
works performed therein are provided in Item 1 (a) above under the heading “Petroleum 
Projects”. 
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Item 2. Properties 
 
The information required by Item 2 is contained in Notes 7 and 8 to the Company’s  
2020 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 
As a participant in SC No.14, the Company reflects its proportionate share in the cost of the 
production facilities of the Galoc and West Linapacan oilfields under the “Wells, platforms and 
other facilities” account. These production facilities are located in the offshore Palawan area, 
while the office condominium unit, furnitures, and other equipments are located at 125 Pioneer 
Street, Mandaluyong City.  These properties are in good condition.  The Company does not 
intend to make any substantial property acquisition in the next twelve (12) months. 
 
The Company’s exploration properties, which are presented as deferred oil exploration and 
development costs in the audited consolidated financial statements are presented below: 

SC No. 
The 

Company’s 
Interest (%)

Partners 
Operator 

/Contractor 
Issue 
Date 

Expiry 
Date 

Location Status 

SC6A 
(Octon) 

51.650 PetroEnergy Resources Corp. 
Anglo Phil. Holdings Corp. 
Ace Exenor, Inc. 
Forum Energy Phils.Corp. 
PXP Energy Corp. 
Alcorn Petroleum & Minerals

The 
Company 

Sep 01, 
1973 

Feb  28, 
2024 

Northwest 
Palawan 

Exploration 

SC6B 
(Bonita) 

17.4546 Oriental Pet.& Minerals Corp 
Nido Petroleum Phils. Pty 
Forum Energy Phils. Corp. 
Alcorn Gold Resources Corp

The 
Company 

Sep 01, 
1973 

Feb 28, 
2024 

Northwest 
Palawan 

Exploration 

SC53 
(Onshore 
Mindoro) 

81.480 Anglo Phil. Holdings Corp. 
 

The 
Company 

July 08, 
2005 

Under 
Moratorium 

Mindoro Exploration 

SC74  
(Linapacan) 

25.000 PXP Energy Corp. 
PNOC-EC 

PXP 
Energy

Sep 03, 
2013

Aug 03, 
2063 

Northwest 
Palawan 

Exploration 

SC41 (Sulu 
Sea) 

     Sulu Sea Submitted 
joint bid for 

Area 7

 
Item 3. Legal Proceedings  
 

 The claim for special retirement pay filed by Mr. Francisco A. Navarro, former President 
of the Company, with the National Labor Relations Commission last February 13, 2017 
was dismissed with finality by the Court of Appeals (CA). 

The Former Fifth Division of the CA issued a Resolution promulgated on February 14, 
2019, dismissing the Motion for Reconsideration on the CA Decision of August 10, 2018 
filed by Mr. Francisco A. Navarro. 

It was reiterated that private respondent, being the president of the corporation, was not a 
mere employee but a stockholder and an officer, hence, an integral part of the 
corporation. As a corporate officer, his complaint for the payment of the alleged “special 
retirement benefit” is an intra-corporate controversy which falls under the jurisdiction of 
the RTC and not the Labor tribunals. 

 Also, the CA found no merit as to Mr. Navarro’s alleged entitlement to a “special 
retirement benefit”. Said claim was only based on the marginal note made by the 
Company’s former President on the letter sent by Mr. Navarro in 2014, during his stint as 
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Executive Vice President. Being a mere request to “finalize” the proposed amendments 
to the Company’s existing retirement plan, the marginal note made by the former 
President can in no way be regarded as an express and categorical approval of Mr. 
Navarro’s request for additional retirement benefit as the latter requires a corporate act, 
which may only be discharged by the Board of Directors. 

In August, 2019, Philodrill received a Notice from the Supreme Court, Third Division 
that a Resolution dated June 3, 2019 was issued which states, among others, “xxx…After 
deliberating on the petition for review on certiorari assailing the Decision and Resolution 
dated August 10, 2018 and February 14, 2019, respectively, of the Court of Appeals, 
Manila in C.A.-G.R. SP No. 155889, the Court, without necessarily giving due course 
thereto, resolves to require respondent to COMMENT thereon (not to file a motion to 
dismiss) within ten (10) days from notice.” 

Philodrill submitted on August 30, 2019 its Comment to the Petition for Review on 
Certiorari filed by Mr. Navarro. The Company received Mr. Navarro’s Reply to the 
Comment on October 9, 2019. 

As of this date, the matter is still awaiting resolution by the Supreme Court. 

 
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 
 
There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the 
fiscal year covered by this report. 
 
  
 
  PART II - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
 
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and RelatedStockholders Matters 
 
(a) Market Price of and Dividends on Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder 
Matters 

 
(1) Market Information 
The Company’s shares are listed and traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).  The high 
and low sales price of the Company’s shares for each quarter during the last two (2) years  
2020 and 2019 and the first quarter of the current year 2021, expressed in Philippine Peso, are as 
follows: 
 

Stock Prices:  High Low
2021 First Quarter 0.0280 0.0100
  
2020 First Quarter 0.0110 0.0064
 Second Quarter 0.0084 0.0070
 Third Quarter 0.0100 0.0075
 Fourth Quarter 0.0120 0.0077
  
2019 First Quarter 0.0130 0.0110
 Second Quarter 0.0120 0.0100
 Third Quarter 0.0120 0.0100
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 Fourth Quarter 0.0120 0.0100
  

 
(2) Holders 
 
There were 8,564 shareholders of record as of December 31, 2020. Common shares outstanding 
as of December 31, 2020 totaled 191,868,805,358 shares.  
 
The Company offered to all its shareholders the right to subscribe to one (1) offer share for every 
four (4) common shares held as of record date of October 16, 2008.In February 2008, the 
Company filed its application for the listing and trading of the offer shares with the PSE and the 
PSE approved the application on September 24, 2008.On May 26, 2008, the Company filed a 
Registration Statement covering the offer shares with the SEC and it was approved by the SEC 
on September 18, 2008. Additional information required is also contained in Note 14 to the 
Company’s 2020 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 
Top 20 stockholders as of December 31, 2020: 
 

NAME NO. OF SHARES 
HELD % TO TOTAL

1. PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION FILIPINO 174,190,861,457 90.79
2. PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION NON FILIPINO 1,020,878,271 0.53
3. ALFREDO C. RAMOS 690,088,350 0.36
4. ALSONS CONSOLIDATED RESOURCES, INC.     566,720,000 0.30
5. MARGARET S. CHUA CHIACO 530,000,000 0.28
6. TRAFALGAR HOLDINGS PHILS., INC.     360,993,600 0.19
7. ALBERTO MENDOZA &/OR JEANIE MENDOZA 317,910,514 0.17
8. CHRISTINE C. CHUA 254,097,005 0.13
9. RCBC TA# 32-314-4     190,900,000 0.10
10. PHIL. REMNANTS CO., INC.     188,247,468 0.10
11. AYALA CORPORATION     188,068,125 0.10
12. CARMENCITA O. REYES 176,415,750 0.09
13. INDEPENDENT REALTY CORPORATION 165,807,000 0.09
14. ANSELMO C. ROQUE 150,000,000 0.08
15. PAULINO G. PE 135,490,200 0.07
16. JOSEPH D. ONG 121,595,829 0.06
17. ANSALDO GODINEZ & CO., INC. 112,188,084 0.06
18. J.A. GONZALEZ 110,400,000 0.06
19. ANGLO PHILIPPINE HOLDINGS CORPORATION 108,936,264 0.06
20. LUCIO W. YAN &/OR CLARA Y. YAN 107,918,500 0.06

 
(3) Dividends 
For the years 2020, 2019and 2018, the Board of Directors approved the declaration of the 
following cash dividends: 
 

Cash Dividend Amount Declared on Record Date Payment Date
2020- none N/A N/A N/A N/A 
2019- none N/A N/A N/A N/A 
2018- none N/A N/A N/A N/A 

 
The Company’s ability to declare and pay dividends is subject to the availability of funds and 
balance of the Retained Earnings. 
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(4) Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities 
NO unregistered securities were sold during the past three (3) years.  All of the Company’s 
issued and outstanding shares of stock are duly registered in accordance with the provisions of 
the Securities Regulation Code. 
 

(a) Securities Sold - not applicable; NO securities were sold 
(b) Underwriters and Other Purchases - not applicable; NO securities were sold 
(c) Consideration - not applicable; NO securities were sold 
(d) Exemption from Registration Claimed - not applicable; NO securities were sold 

 
Item 6.Management’s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation. 
 

(a) Management’s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation 
 
AuditedConsolidatedFinancial Statements for Years 2018 to 2020 
 

(In thousands of Pesos) As at 31 Dec 2020 As at 31 Dec 2019 As at 31 Dec 2018 

Income Statement    
Petroleum Revenues 90,399 246,488 382,676 

Operating Income (Loss) (266,613) (123,049) (352,450) 
Net Income (Loss) (251,881) (63,218) (261,957) 
Assets   
Current Assets 573,998 693,735 918,115 
Non-Current Assets 2,500,240 2,660,844 2,562,218 

Total Assets 3,074,238 3,354,580 3,480,333 
Liabilities   
Current Liabilities 46,307 79,568 149,872 
Non-Current Liabilities 52,599 43,721 31,089 
Stockholders’ Equity  2,975,332 3,231,290 3,299,371 
Earnings Per Share  - - - 

 
 
(1) Plan of Operation 

 
(A) The Company expects to be able to satisfy its working capital requirements for the next 

twelve (12) months. Should the Company’s cash position be not sufficient to meet 
current requirements, the Company may consider: 

 
Issuing subscriptions call on the balance of the Subscriptions Receivable as of 
December 31, 2020; collecting a portion of Accounts Receivables as of December 31, 
2020; Selling a portion of its existing investments and/or assets; and or Generating cash 
from loans and advances. 
 

(B) The Company continues to consider farm-in proposals from local and foreign oil 
companies which have offered to undertake additional exploration/development work 
and implement production enhancement measures at no cost to the Filipino companies 
in exchange for equity in the projects that they will be involved in.  
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(C) The Company does not expect to make any significant purchase or sale of any plant and 

equipment within the next twelve (12) months. 
 

(D) The Company does not expect any significant change in the number of its employeesin 
the next twelve (12) months. 

 
 

(2) Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

Financial highlights for the years 2020, 2019 and 2018 are presented below: 
 

(in thousands of pesos) 
2020 2019 2018 

Petroleum Revenues 90,399 246,488 382,676 
Investment Income  17,313 42,040 32,380 

Interest Income 14,252 20,125 21,122 
Net Income (Loss) (251,881) (63,218) (261,957) 
Total Assets 3,074,238 3,354,580 3,480,333 

Net Worth 2,975,332 3,231,290 3,299,371 
Issued & Subscribed Capital 1,918,688 1,918,688 1,918,688 

 
 

The key performance indicators of the Company are as follows: 
 

 Dec. 31, 2020 Dec. 31, 2019 Dec. 31, 2018 
 
Current Ratio 

 
12.40:1

 
8.72:1

 
6.13:1 

   Current Assets 573,997,999 693,735,475 918,114,898 
   Current Liabilities 46,307,229 79,568,492 149,872,054 
 
Debt to Equity Ratio 

 
0.03:1

 
0.04:1

 
0.05:1 

   Total Liabilities  98,906,075 123,289,829 180,961,421 
Stockholders Equity 2,975,331,588 3,231,289,998 3,299,371,784 
 
Equity to Debt Ratio 

 
30.08:1

 
26.21:1

 
18.23:1 

Stockholders Equity 2,975,331,588 3,231,289,998 3,299,371,784 
    Total Liabilities 98,906,075 123,289,829 180,961,421 
 
Book Value per Share 

 
0.01551

 
0.01684

 
0.01720 

Stockholders Equity 2,975,331,588 3,231,289,998 3,299,371,784 
    Outstanding shares 191,868,805,358 191,868,805,358 191,868,805,358 
 
Earnings (Loss) per Share 

 
(0.0013)

 
(0.0003)

 
(0.0014) 

    Net Income (Loss) (251,881,144) (63,218,421) (261,957,274) 
Weighted Average shares 

outstanding 
191,868,805,358 191,868,805,358 191,868,805,358 
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Current Ratio is 12.40:1 as of December 31, 2020; 8.72:1 as of December 31, 2019; and 6.13:1 
as of December 31, 2018. As of December 31, 2020, December 31, 2019 and December 31, 
2018, current assets exceeded the current liabilities by P527.7 million, P614.2 million and 
P768.2 million, respectively. However, a portion of the “Investments” account in the statements 
of financial position consists mainly of shares of stock which are listed with the PSE and which 
could be sold to meet the Company’s obligations as might be called for by future circumstances. 
These shares of stock have an aggregate market value of P79.5 million as of December 31, 2020, 
P68.3million as of December 31, 2019 and P70.5 million as of December 31, 2018. If these 
shares would be considered part of Current Assets, the recomputed current ratio would be 
14.11:1 as of December 31, 2020; 9.58:1 as of December 31, 2019; and 6.60:1 as of December 
31, 2018. 
 
The Company has a wholly-owned subsidiary, Philodrill Power Corporation (PPC) (formerly 
Phoenix Gas & Oil Exploration Co., Inc.). The Company acquired 100% of PPC’s capital stock 
in May 2007. Since PPC has NO operations, disclosure on performance indicators are as 
follows: 
 

 December 31, 2020
Current Ratio 191.5:1
Current Assets 8,577,667 
Current Liabilities 44,800
Debt to Equity Ratio 0.0053:1 
Total Liabilities  44,800
Stockholders’ Equity 8,532,867
Equity to Debt Ratio 190.5:1 
Stockholders’ Equity 8,532,867
Total Liabilities 44,800
Book Value per Share 0.0007
Stockholders’ Equity 8,532,867 
Average shares outstanding 12,505,000,000 
Income per Share -0- 
Net Income (Loss) (66,876)
Average shares outstanding  12,505,000,000

 
(i) Trends, events or uncertainties that have or are reasonably likely to have a material 

impact on the Company’s short-term or long-term liquidity, the information required 
by this item is contained in Note 22 to the Company’s 2020 Audited Consolidated 
Financial Statements.  

 
(ii) The Company’s internal source of liquidity comes from revenues generated from 

operations. The Company’s external sources of liquidity come from stock 
subscriptions, loans and advances.  

 
(iii) The Company is expected to contribute its share in the exploration and development 

expenditures in the SCs. However, most of the funding for such expenditures is 
expected to be provided by operations, collection of subscriptions and other 
receivables, loans/financing from banks and potential farminees to these projects.  
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(iv) Trends, events or uncertainties that have had or reasonably expected to have a 
material impact on the revenues or income from continuing operations, the 
information required by this item is contained in Notes 11 and 22 to the Company’s 
2020 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements.  

 
(v) There have been no material changes from period to period in one or more line 

items of the Company’s financial statements, except those discussed below:  
 

a) Total assets decreased by P280.3 million from P3.35 billion as of year-end 2019 
to P3.07 billion as of year-end 2020.  

 
- Cash account decreased by P130.0 million from P403.3 million as of 

December 31, 2019 to P273.3 million as of December 31, 2020 mainly 
due to the payment of the Company’s share in the operating costs of 
Galoc and other overhead costs. 

 
- Receivables account increased by P5.1 million from P279.7 million as 

of December 31, 2019 to P284.8 million as of December 31, 2019 due 
to additional advances made net of revaluation booked at year-end 
2020.  
 

- Crude oil inventory increased by P6.8 million from P7.7 million as of 
December 31, 2019 to P14.5 million for the Company’s share in 
inventory for the SC14 Galoc crude as of December 31, 2020. The 
increase was due to higher crude price. 

 
- Other current assets decreased from its December 31, 2019 balance of 

P3.1 million to December 31, 2020 balance of P1.5 million. The 
decrease was due to amortization of the prepayments booked during the 
year. 

 
- Property and equipment decreased by P88.8 million from its December 

31, 2019 balance of P477.7 million to December 31, 2020 balance of 
P389.0 million. The decrease was mainly due to depletion expense 
(P61.8 million), provision for impairment (P33.0 million) net of 
additional capital expenditures (P5.7 million). 

 
- Investments in associates decreased by P7.9 million from the year-end 

2019 balance of P824.9 million to year-end 2020 balance of P817.0 
million due the equity share in associates’ earnings, adjustment in the 
other comprehensive income of associates net of cash dividend booked 
during the period. Additional information is also contained in Note 9 of 
the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for 2020. 

 
- Financial assets at Fair Value through OCI increased by P9.5 million 

from its year-end 2019 balance of P72.5 million to year-end 2020 
balance of P82.0 million. The net increase of P9.5 million was due to 
adjustment in the quoted shares carried at fair market value at end of 
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2020 (P8.5 million) and the acquisition of additional investment (P1.0 
million). Additional information is also contained in Note 10 of the 
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for 2020. 
 

- Deferred oil exploration costs decreased by P86.6 million from its year-
end 2019 balance of P1.074 billion to year-end 2020 balance of P0.988 
billion. The decrease of P86.6 million was due to the impairment 
provision booked at year-end 2020 (P99.0 million), net of additional 
costs incurred for the various petroleum exploration projects (P13.0 
million). 

 
- Deferred tax asset (DTA) increased from its year-end 2019 balance of 

P185.4 million to P201.4 million as of year-end 2020 due the 
adjustment on recognized DTA mainly on net operating loss carryover.  

 
- Other non-current assets decreased by P2.7 million from its year-end 

2019 to year-end 2020 balance of P25.9 million due to the amortization 
of other deferred charges booked during the year. 

 
b) Total liabilities decreased from its balance of P123.3 million in 2019 to P98.9 

million balance in 2020. 
 

- Accounts payable and accrued liabilities increased by P5.9 million from 
its year-end 2019 balance of P7.2 million to year-end 2020 balance of 
P13.1 million due to higher level of accrued expenses booked.  
 

- For year-end 2019, two (2) wells of Nido remained unplugged and for 
abandonment in 2020, the corresponding share in the P&A costs 
amounted to P39.0M. The accrued amount was subsequently paid in 
2020. Additional information is also contained in Note 13 of the 
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for 2020. 
 

- Income tax payable as of year-end 2019 amounted to P0.21 million. As 
at year-end 2020, income tax liability amounted to P48,475. 
  

- Dividends payable amounted to P33.143 million as of year-end 2019 
and P33.137 million as of year-end 2020. The slight decrease of P5,943 
was due to the payments made during the period. 

 
- Beginning year-end 2016, full provision was made for the future cost of 

decommissioning Galoc oilfield. The company’s estimated share in 
decommissioning liability amounted to P23.9 million as of December 
31, 2019 and P26.7 million as of year-end 2020. The movements on the 
balances were adjustments on the revaluation of the liability. In relation 
to this decommissioning liability, a decommissioning fund equivalent to 
its current contribution to settle its share in the decommissioning costs 
of Galoc oilfield is also established and is reflected under “Property and 
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equipment” account.  Additional information is also contained in Note 
13 of the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for 2020.   

 
- Retirement benefit liability increased by P6.1 million from its year-end 

2019 balance of P19.8 million to year-end 2020 balance of P25.9 
million. The increase of P6.1 million was due to the adjustment in the 
recognized retirement benefit liability as of end of the period. 
Additional information is also contained in Note 19 of the Audited 
Consolidated Financial Statements for 2020.   
 

c)  Stockholders’ equity decreased by P256.0 million from its year-end 2019 
balance to year-end 2020 balance of P2.97 billion.  

 
- Capital stock balance remained at P1.743 billion for the years-ended 

2019 and 2020. 
 
- The unrealized loss on the decline in value of financial assets at fair 

value through other comprehensive income decreased by 8.5 million 
from year-end 2019 balance of P41.0 million to year-end 2020 balance 
of P32.5 million. The decrease of P8.5 million was due to the fair value 
changes during the year. Additional information is also contained in 
Note 10 of the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for 2020. 

 
- Retained Earnings from year-end 2019 balance of P1.52 billion to year-

end 2020 balance of P1.27 billion, reflected a net decrease of P251.9 
million due to the net loss booked during the period. 

 
d) Petroleum revenues in 2020 totaled P90.4 million as compared to P246.5 

million in 2019 and P382.7 million in 2018. For the year 2020, the decrease in 
revenues was mainly brought about by the decrease in volume and crude prices.  
Production decreased by 9% from its 2019 level of 0.76 million barrels to 0.69 
million barrels in 2020.Combined average prices for 2020 and 2019 were 
US$37.15 and US$59.44, respectively. For 2018, total production volume was 
1.25 million barrels and average price per barrel was US$70.98. 

 
Equity in net earnings of associates amounted to P17.3 million in 2020 and 
P42.0 million in 2019. The decrease of P24.7 million from year-end 2019 to 
year-end 2020 balance was due to lower level of income of PCIC. For 2018, 
equity in net earnings of associates amounted to P32.4 million. 
 
Interest income totaled to P14.3 million in 2020, P20.1 million in 2019 and 
P21.1 million in 2018.  
 
Foreign exchange gains (losses) amounted to (P20.6) million in 2020, (P15.2) 
million for 2019 and P22.5 million for 2018. 

 
e) Total costs and expenses totaled to P369.4 million in 2020, P417.8 million in 

2019 and P811.0 million in 2018. 
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Share in production and plug and abandonment costs totaled to P99.36 million 
in 2020, P287.3 million in 2019 and P490.4 million in 2018.  The company 
incurred plug and abandonment costs amounting to P39 million in 2019 and 
P243 million in 2018. These are for the plug and abandonment costs of the 
Libro, Tara, Nido, Matinloc and North Matinloc oil wells. Additional 
information is also contained in Note 13 of the Audited Consolidated Financial 
Statements for 2020. 
 
Depletion costs amounted to P61.8 million in 2020, P64.6 million in 2019 and 
P88.4 million in 2018. 
 
General and administrative expenses totaled to P73.0 million in 2020, P62.7 
million in 2019 and P82.0 million in 2018. 
 

 Current provision for income taxes amounted to P0.9 million in 2020, P2.8 
million in 2019 and P2.1 million in 2018. Recognition of deferred tax asset 
resulted to benefit from income tax amounting to P15.6 million in 2020, P62.6 
million in 2019 and P92.6 million in 2018. 

 
For 2020, provision for unrecoverable deferred oil exploration costs amounting 
to P132.7 million was booked at year-end for the Swan block and Retention 
block project costs. Also in 2018, loss on write off of exploration costs of 
plugged and abandoned projects under SC14, receivables and investment were 
booked totaling to P128.2 million. Provision for expected credit loss amounting 
to P20.9 million was also booked for the period. 

 
(vi) There have been NO seasonal aspects that had material effect on the financial 

condition or results of operations of the Company.  
 

(vii) There are NO events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is 
material to the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.  

 
(viii) There are NO material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations 

(including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the Company with 
unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period. 

 
(3) Interim Periods 

 
No interim financial statements are included in this report. 
 

Item 7. Financial Statements 
 
The 2020Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company is incorporated herein by 
reference.  The schedules listed in the accompanying Index to Supplementary Schedules are 
filed as part of this Form 17-A. 
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Item 8. Information on Independent Accountant and other Related Matters 
 
Information on Independent Accountant. The accounting firm of SyCip Gorres Velayo & 
Company (SGV) with address at 6760 Ayala Avenue, Makati City was appointed as the external 
auditor of the Company in the 2018, 2019 and 2020 annual stockholders’ meetings. 
 
External Audit Fees and Services. The fees of the external auditor in the past three (3) years 
for the Group are as follows: 
 

Year Audit & Audit Related Fees Tax Fees Other Fees 
2020 P1,100,000 -0- -0- 
2019 P1,100,000 -0- -0- 
2018 P1,300,000 -0- -0- 

 
For the past three (3) years, the Company has engaged the services of SGV for the audit of the 
annual consolidated financial statements in connection with statutory and regulatory filings for 
years 2020, 2019 and 2018.The amounts under the caption “Audit and Audit Related Fees” for 
the years 2020, 2019 and 2018 pertain to these services.  
 
The Audit Committee has an existing policy, which prohibits the Company from engaging the 
independent accountant to provide services that may adversely impact their independence, 
including those expressly prohibited by SEC regulations. 
 
Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure. 
There have been NO changes in and disagreements with accountants on any matter of 
accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosures, or auditing scope or 
procedure.  
 
The Company did NOT engage any new independent accountant, as either principal accountant 
to audit the Company’s consolidated financial statements or as an independent accountant on 
whom the principal accountant has expressed or is expected to express reliance in its report 
regarding a significant subsidiary, during the two (2) most recent fiscal years or any subsequent 
interim period. 
 
NO independent accountant engaged by the Company as principal accountant, or an independent 
accountant on whom the principal accountant has expressed or is expected to express reliance on 
its report regarding a significant subsidiary, has resigned, or has declined to stand for re-election 
after completion of the current audit, or was dismissed. 
 
The Audit Committee reviews and recommends to the Board and stockholders the appointment 
of the external auditor and the fixing of the audit fees for the Company. For year 2020, SGV will 
be recommended for appointment as external auditors during the stockholders’ meeting. 
 
 
 PART III - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION 
 
Item 9.Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant 
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(a) Directors, Executive Officers Promoters and Control Persons 
 

(1) Identify Directors and Executive Officers 
 

(A) Names and Ages of all Directors and Executive Officers 
 

Name Age Citizenship Position 
Period of Service 

From To 
Alfredo C. Ramos 77 Filipino Chairman of the Board Dec 2, 1992 Present 

President Apr 24, 1989 Mar 31, 2014
Jan 1, 2017 Present

Presentacion S. Ramos 79 Filipino Director May 28, 1997 Present
Christopher M. Gotanco 71 Filipino Director Aug 17, 2005 Present
Adrian S. Ramos 42 Filipino Director Jan 18, 2006 Present
Gerard Anton S. Ramos 46 Filipino Director Dec 16, 2015 Present
Alexandra Ramos-Padilla 48 Filipino Director Jun 19, 2013 Present
Reynaldo E. Nazarea 70 Filipino Director 

Treasurer 
VP Administration

Jun 21, 2017 
May 1, 2005 
May 1, 1992 

Present 
Present 

Present
Honorio A. Poblador III 75 Filipino Independent Director Feb 26, 2003 Present
Nicasio I. Alcantara 78 Filipino Independent Director Feb 26, 2003 Present
Alessandro O. Sales 62 Filipino VP Exploration & Production Mar 11, 2008 Present
Isabelita L. Matela 66 Filipino AVP Finance Oct 1, 2009 Present
Dennis V. Panganiban 58 Filipino AVP Exploration & Production Sep 1, 2011 Present
Adrian S. Arias 58 Filipino Corporate Secretary Dec 2, 1992 Present

 
The Company’s Independent Directors are Messrs. Honorio A. Poblador III and  
Nicasio I. Alcantara. 
 
(B)Positions and offices that each person named above held with the Company 

 
Mr. Alfredo C. Ramos has been the Chairman of the Board of the Company 
since December 2, 1992.  He also served as President of the Company from 
April 24, 1989 until March 31, 2014.On January 1, 2017, he was re-elected 
President of the Company. 

 
Ms. Presentacion S. Ramos has been a Director since May 28, 1997. 

 
Mr. Christopher M. Gotanco was elected Director on August 17, 2005. 

 
Mr. Adrian S. Ramos was elected Director on January 18, 2006. 
 
Mr. Gerard Anton S. Ramos was elected Director on December 16, 2015. 

   
Ms. Maureen Alexandra Ramos-Padilla was elected Director on June 19, 2013. 
 
Mr. Reynaldo E. Nazarea was appointed Vice President for Finance in 1987. He 
concurrently serves as Vice President for Administration since 1992, and as 
Company Treasurer since May 1, 2005. On June 21, 2017, he was elected as 
Director of the Company. 

 
Mr. Nicasio I. Alcantara has been a Director of the Company since 1991 and 
was elected Independent Director on February 26, 2003.  Mr. Alcantara has all 
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the qualifications and none of the disqualifications as an Independent Director 
since his election in 2003. 

 
Mr. Honorio A. Poblador III has been a Director of the Company since 1992 
and was elected Independent Director on February 26, 2003. Mr. Poblador 
possesses all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications as Independent 
Director since his election in 2003. 

 

Mr. Alessandro O. Sales became the Vice President for Exploration on May 15, 
2005, then subsequently Vice President for Exploration and Production 
beginning March 11, 2008. 

 

Ms. Isabelita L. Matela was appointed Asst. Vice President for Finance on 
October 1, 2009. She was previously Finance Manager of the Company for 23 
years prior to her assumption as AVP. 

 

Mr. Dennis V. Panganiban was appointed Asst. Vice President for Exploration 
and Production on September 1, 2011. 

 

Atty. Adrian S. Arias has been the Company’s Corporate Secretary since 
December 2, 1992. 
 

(C) Term of Office as Director and Period of Service 
The Directors of the Company are elected at the Annual Stockholders’ meeting 
to hold office until the next succeeding annual meeting and until their respective 
successors have been elected and qualified. Officers are appointed or elected 
annually by the Board of Directors during its organizational meeting following 
the Annual Meeting of Stockholders, each to hold office until the corresponding 
meeting of the Board of Directors in the next year or until a successor shall have 
been elected, appointed or shall have qualified, in accordance with the 
Company’s By Laws. 

 
(D)  Business experience of directors/officers during the past five (5) years  

 
 MR. ALFREDO C. RAMOS has been the Chairman of the Board since 

December 1992. He was President and Chief Executive Officer of The 
Philodrill Corporation from April 24, 1989 to March 31, 2014. On January 1, 
2017, he was re-elected President of the Company. Mr. Alfredo C. Ramos 
concurrently serves as Chairman of the Board of Anglo Philippine Holdings 
Corporation; Chairman of Atlas Consolidated Mining & Development 
Corporation, Vulcan Industrial & Mining Corporation and United Paragon 
Mining Corporation. 

 
Mr. Ramos maintains business interests in companies involved in printing, 
publication, sale and distribution of books, magazines and other printed media 
since 1962 (Anvil Publishing, Inc., National Bookstore, Inc., NBS Express, Inc., 
Power Books, Inc., Abacus Book and Card Corporation), mining since 1988 
(Berong Nickel Corporation and Carmen Copper Corporation.), property 
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development since 1991 (Shang Properties, Inc.) and transportation since 1996 
(MRT Development Corp., MRT Holdings Corporation) among others. 

 
PRESENTACION S. RAMOS is a Member of the Board of The Philodrill 
Corporation since May 1997. Mrs. Ramos also serves as Chairman of the 
Board of Alakor Securities Corporation and sits in the Board of Anglo 
Philippine Holdings Corporation (1984 to date), United Paragon Mining 
Corporation (1993 to date), Vulcan Industrial & Mining Corporation (1993 to 
date) and Philippine Red Cross. Mrs. Ramos also serves as Executive Officer of 
Peakpres Corporation, Abacus Book & Card Corp., National Book Store, Inc., 
NBS Express, Inc., Power Books, Inc., Zenith Holdings Corporation and Alakor 
Corporation. 

 
GERARD ANTON S. RAMOS joined The Philodrill Corporation in 
December 2015. He is a member of the Board of Atlas Consolidated Mining & 
Development Corporation and Carmen Copper Corporation.  He serves as 
Executive Vice President for Investments at Anglo Philippine Holdings Corp.; 
Vice President at Alakor Corporation. President and Nominee at Alakor 
Securities Corporation and President of United Paragon Mining Corp.; Vice 
President for Business Development & Corp. Secretary of National Bookstore, 
Inc.  

 
ADRIAN  PAULINO S. RAMOS. Apart from being a member of the Board of 
The Philodrill Corporation, Mr. Adrian Ramos holds key position in several 
listed companies: President & COO of Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation; 
President of Atlas Consolidated Mining & Development Corp.; President of 
Vulcan Industrial & Mining Corporation and Treasurer of United Paragon 
Mining Corporation. He is also the current Vice President of Alakor 
Corporation, Vice President and CFO of National Book Store, Inc. He also 
serves as Treasurer and Director at Alakor Securities Corporation. 

 
MAUREEN ALEXANDRA RAMOS-PADILLA joined the company as 
Director in June, 2013. She also serves as Director of Anglo Philippine 
Holdings Corporation and Zenith Holdings Corporation. Her other business 
affiliations include, Managing Director of National Book Store, Inc. and 
President of Anvil Publishing Corp.  

 
CHRISTOPHER M. GOTANCO is a Director of The Philodrill Corporation 
from 2006 to date. He is currently a Senior Advisor and member of the Board of 
Directors of Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation. 

 
Mr. Gotanco’s current affiliations include: Vulcan Materials Corporation (Vice 
Chairman & Director from 2012 to date), Bataan Aggregates Corporation 
(Director from April 2017 to date), MRT Holdings, Inc. (Director from 1995 to 
date), MRT Development Corporation (Director from 1995 to date), North 
Triangle Development Corp. (Director from 2004-2014), Vulcan Industrial and 
Mining Corporation (Director from 1989 to date), (Vice Chairman & COO from 
2012 to date)  United Paragon and Mining Corporation (Director from 2006 to 
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date), Penta Capital Investment Corporation (Director, from 2007 to date; Vice 
chairman, 2007-2018; Chairman, 2018-2019); Penta Capital Finance 
Corporation (Director from 2007 to date; Chairman, 2007-2019), and  
Boulevard Holdings, Inc (Director from 2007 to date). 

 
REYNALDO E. NAZAREA joined the Company as Vice President for 
Finance in 1987. He was appointed Treasurer in 2005, and has concurrently 
been serving as Vice President for Administration since 1992. Before joining 
the Company, Mr. Nazarea practiced public accounting under Sycip, Gorres, 
Velayo& Co. and held accounting, finance, controllership and administrative 
positions in Vulcan Industrial & Mining Corporation and Semirara Coal 
Corporation (now Semirara Mining Corporation). Mr. Nazarea also serves in the 
Board of Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation, PentaCapital Investment 
Corporation, PentaCapital Finance Corporation, PentaCapital Holdings, Inc. and 
Vulcan Industrial and Mining Corporation. 

 
NICASIO I. ALCANTARA has been an Independent Director of the Company 
since 2003. He is the Chairman and President of ACR Mining Corporation and 
Chairman of the Board of Conal Corporation. He serves as the Chairman of 
Corporate Governance Committee of BDO Private Bank, Inc. and is a member 
of the Bank’s Audit Committee and Related Party Transactions Committee. He 
is currently a Director of Alsons Corporation, Seafront Resources Corporation, 
Enderun Colleges, Inc,, Rsocal Corporation, Samal Agricultural Development 
Corporation, South Star Aviation Corporation, Trusto Corporation and Phoenix 
Petroleum Philippines, Inc.. 
 
Prior to this, Mr. Alcantara held position of Chairman and President of various 
corporations, namely, Alsons Development & Investment Corp., Aquasur 
Resources Corporation, Alsons Aquaculture Corporation, Alsing Power 
Holdings, Inc., Mapalad Power Corporation, Fial Corporation, Southern 
Philippine Power Corporation, San Ramon Power, Inc., Sarangani Energy 
Corporation and Sunfoods Agri Ventures Corporation. He was also the 
Chairman of ACR Mining Corporation, Finfish Hatcheries, Inc. and Site Group 
International, Ltd..   
 
HONORIO A. POBLADOR III served as Independent Director of the 
company since 2003. He is currently Chairman of Elnor Investment 
Corporation, Pneumatic Air Corporation, F&C Realty, Asuncion Agro-Realty 
Corporation and President of ASMACO Inc.. Mr. Poblador holds several 
Directorships among them, PobCor Inc. and Alsons Consolidated Resources. 

 
ALESSANDRO O. SALES is the Company's Vice President for Exploration 
since 2005. He is responsible for implementing Philodrill’s oil exploration and 
development programs for the past thirteen (13) years. He previously served as 
Asst. Vice President of the Company in 1997. 
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ISABELITA L. MATELA was appointed Asst. Vice President for Finance on 
October 1, 2009. She served the Company as Finance & Administration 
Manager for 23 years prior to her assumption as AVP. 

 
DENNIS V. PANGANIBAN was appointed Asst. Vice President for 
Exploration and Production on September 1, 2011. Prior to joining Philodrill, he 
held a Managerial position in NorAsian Energy Ltd., as Joint Venture and Asset 
Manager for several years. 

 
ATTY. ADRIAN S. ARIAS is the Company's Corporate Secretary. He has 
been in active corporate law practice for thirty (30) years and  serves as a 
director of companies involved in investments holding (Anglo Philippine 
Holdings Corp.), financial services (Penta Capital Finance Corporation and 
Penta Capital Investment Corp.), retail (Vulcan Industrial & Mining Corp.), and 
distribution support services (QFI-Central Integrated Services, Inc.).  
 

(E) Directors with directorship(s) held in reporting companies 
 
 
 
 

(2) Significant Employees  
 

Other than its executive officers, the Company has not engaged the services of any 
person who is expected to make significant contribution to the business of the Company. 

 
(3) Family Relationships 
 

Alfredo C. Ramos Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation
Atlas Consolidated Mining &Dev’t. Corp. 
Shang Properties, Inc.
United Paragon Mining Corporation
Vulcan Industrial & Mining Corporation 

Presentacion S. Ramos Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation
United Paragon Mining Corporation
Vulcan Industrial & Mining Corporation 

Christopher M. Gotanco Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation
Boulevard Holdings, Inc.
United Paragon Mining Corporation
Vulcan Industrial & Mining Corporation 

Adrian S. Ramos Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation
Atlas Consolidated Mining &Dev’t. Corp. 
United Paragon Mining Corporation
Vulcan Industrial & Mining Corporation 

Maureen Alexandra Ramos-Padilla Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation
Gerard Anton S. Ramos Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation

Atlas Consolidated Mining &Dev’t. Corp. 
United Paragon Mining Corporation

Reynaldo E. Nazarea Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation
Vulcan Industrial & Mining Corporation 

Nicasio I. Alcantara Seafront Resources Corporation
Honorio A. Poblador III Alsons Consolidated Resources
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Mr. Alfredo C. Ramos, President and Chairman of the Board, is the husband of Ms. 
Presentacion S. Ramos, Director.  Mr. Gerard Anton S. Ramos, Mr.Adrian S. Ramos, 
and Ms. Maureen Alexandra Ramos-Padilla, all Directors, are siblings, sons and 
daughter of Mr. Alfredo C. Ramos and Ms. Presentacion S. Ramos.  

 
(4) Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings 

 
On 22 January 2018, Mr. Navarro filed three (3) separate Petitions for Review with the 
Department of Justice (DOJ), assailing the November 27, 2017 Resolution of Asst. City 
Prosecutor Hernandez of Mandaluyong City dismissing the following cases: 

         Violation of Article 183 of the Revised Penal Code/Perjury Case against Mr. 
Nazarea and Ms. Matela. 

         Violation of Article 183 of the Revised Penal Code/Perjury Case against Mr. 
Nazarea and Ms. Laurente. 

         Violation of Sec. 28 in relation to Sec. 144 of the Corporation Code/Corporation 
Code Case against Mr. Nazarea, Mr. Alfredo C.  Ramos, Ms. Presentacion S. Ramos, 
Mr. Gerard Anton S. Ramos, Mr. ChristopherM. Gotanco, Mr. Maureen Alexandra R. 
Padilla, and Atty.Arias. 

On February 21, 2018 the Company’s Directors and Corporate Secretary filed their 
respective Comments/Oppositions to the said Petition for Review. The matter remain 
pending with the DOJ. 

The Company maintains that Mr. Navarro’s pending Petition for Review presents no new or 
substantial matter that will warrant the reversal of the Resolution of Asst. City Prosecutor 
Hernandez. 

 
Other than the foregoing case, the company is not aware of: 

 
(1) any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which a director, person 
nominated to become a director, executive officer, promoter, or control person of the 
Company was a general partner or executive officer either at the time of the bankruptcy 
or within two (2) years prior that time;  
 
(2) any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, or 
being subject to a pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign excluding traffic 
violations and other minor offenses of any director, person nominated to become a 
director, executive officer, promoter, or control person of the Company;  
 
(3) any order, judgment or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of 
any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily, or 
being subject to a pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, excluding traffic 
violations and other minor offenses of any director, executive officer, promoter or  
control person; and  
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(4) judgment against a director, person nominated to become a director, executive 
officer, promoter, or control person of the Company found by a domestic or foreign 
court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the Philippine SEC or comparable 
foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or electronic marketplace or self-
regulatory organization, to have violated a securities or commodities law, and the 
judgment has not been reversed, suspended or vacated. 
 
 

Item 10. Executive Compensation 
 

(1) Summary Compensation Table 
 
Information as to aggregate compensation paid or accrued during the last two (2) years 
and to be paid in the ensuing year to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and four 
other most highly compensated officers as follows: 
   

Name Position 
(as of Dec 31, 2020)

Year Salary Bonus Other annual 
Compensation

Alfredo C. Ramos 
Reynaldo E. Nazarea 
Alessandro O. Sales 
Isabelita L. Matela 
Dennis V. Panganiban 

Chairman&President  
Treasurer & VP-Admin 
VP-Exploration&Production 
AVP-Finance 
AVP-Exploration&Production

    

  2019 17,480,031 -0- -0-
  2020 18,380,706 -0- -0-
  2021 

(estimate)
18,748,320 -0- -0- 

    
All Officers and 
directors as a group 
unnamed 

     

  2019 23,809,542 -0- 540,000
  2020 25,112,169 -0- 310,000
  2021 

(estimate)
25,614,413   

(2) Compensation of Directors 
 
(A) Standard Arrangement 

 
For the most recently completed year, directors received a per diem of P10,000 per 
month to defray their expenses in attending board meetings, which will continue to 
be received in the ensuing year. There are no other arrangements for compensation 
of directors, as such, during the last year and for the ensuing year. 

 
(B) Other Arrangements 

 
Except for the entitlement to receive bonuses as determined by the management and 
to receive additional remuneration under the provisions of the Company’s Stock 
Appreciation Rights Plan, there are no other arrangements for compensation of 
directors, as such, during the last year and ensuing year.  
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(3) Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control 
 

The Company maintains standard employment contracts with Messrs. Alfredo C. 
Ramos, Reynaldo E. Nazarea, Alessandro O. Sales, Ms. Isabelita L. Matela and Dennis 
V. Panganiban, all of which provide for their respective compensation and benefits, 
including entitlement to health benefits, representation expenses and company car plan.  

 
Other than what is provided under applicable labor laws, there are no compensatory 
plans or arrangements with executive officers entitling them to receive more than 
P2,500,000.00 as a result of their resignation, or any other termination of employment, 
or from change in control of the Company. 

 
The Company maintains a retirement plan pursuant to which an eligible employee will 
receive an amount equal to a percentageof his final monthly salary for every year of 
credited service. Based on the policy, the retirement pay of some officers of the 
Company may exceed P2,500,000.00.  

 
Certain employees, including directors of the Company, receive stock appreciation right, 
further details of which are given in Note 12 to the Company’s 2020 Audited 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

  
There are no warrants or options outstanding in favor of directors and officers of the 
Company. 

 
Item 11. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management 
 

(1) Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners 
 

As of December 31, 2020 the Company is not aware of anyone who beneficially owns more 
than 5% of the Company’s common stock, except as set forth in the table below: 
  

 
Class 

 
Name/Address of Record 

Owner 

Relationship 
With Issuer 

 
Name of Beneficial 

Owner 
Citizenship 

No of Shares 
Held 

Percentage 
Ownership 

Common 
PCD Nominee Corporation 
37/F Tower 1 Enterprise Center 
6766 Ayala Ave, Makati 

 
Stockholder 

Various clients 
(Notes A, B and C) 

Filipino 
 

73,147,981,049 38.124% 

Common 
National Book Store, Inc. 
4/F Quad Alpha Centrum 
125 Pioneer, Mandaluyong 

 
Stockholder 

National Book Store Inc Filipino 16,735,965,802 8.723% 

Common 
Alakor Corporation 
9/F Quad Alpha Centrum 
125 Pioneer, Mandaluyong 

 
Stockholder 

Alakor Corporation Filipino 16,735,965,801 8.723% 

Common 

Alakor Securities Corporation 
5/F Quad Alpha Centrum 
125 Pioneer, Mandaluyong 

 
Stockholder 

Anglo Philippine 
Holdings Corp./Alakor 
Corporation/National 

Bookstore, Inc.

Filipino 31,701,793,010 16.523% 

Common 
BDO Securities Corporation 
27th Floor, Tower 1 & Exchange 
Plaza, Ayala Ave., Makati City

 
Stockholder 

Anglo Philippine 
Holdings Corp. 

Filipino 36,462,800,000 19.004% 

Common 

Anglo Philippine Holdings 
Corp. 
6/F Quad Alpha Centrum 
125 Pioneer, Mandaluyong 

 
Stockholder 

Anglo Philippine 
Holdings Corp. 

Filipino 
536,170,330 

 
0.279% 
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Note A:  The number of shares held by PCD Nominee Corporation (PCD) is net of the 102,063,758,679 shares held by 

National Book Store Inc (NBS), Alakor Corporation (AC) and Anglo Philippine Holdings Corp. (Anglo). 
 
Note B: Of the 73,147,981,049 shares held by PCD, 72,005,524,747 shares have been fully paid and issued, while 

1,142,456,302 are subscribed. The 16,735,865,802 shares held by NBS and the 16,735,965,801 shares held by 
AC are all subscribed.  Of the 66,904,763,340 shares held (directly and indirectly) by Anglo, 66,477,529,274 
shares have been fully paid and issued, while 427,234,066 shares are subscribed. 

 
Note C:  The shares registered in the name of PCD are beneficially owned by its clients. Thus, PCD does not vote the 

number of shares registered in its name; instead, PCD issues a general proxy constituting and appointing each of 
its participants as PCD’s proxy to vote for the number of shares owned by such participant in PCD’s books as of 
Record Date. The proxies of NBS, AC and Anglo are appointed by their respective Boards of Directors and the 
Company becomes aware of such proxies only when the appointments are received by the Company. Mr. 
Alfredo C. Ramos has been appointed proxy for NBS, Anglo and AC.  Mr. Ramos has direct/indirect 
interest/shareholdings in NBS, AC and Anglo. 

  
 

(2) Security Ownership of Management 
 

The Company’s directors (D), Chief Executive Officer (CEO), and four (4) most highly 
compensated executive officers (O) own the following number of voting shares as of 
December 31, 2020: 

 
Title of 
Class 

Name of Beneficial Owner 
Amount and Nature of 
Beneficial Ownership

Citizenship 
 

Percent of 
Class

  Direct Indirect  
Common Alfredo C. Ramos (D,O) P6,900,884 P20,022 Filipino 0.361%
Common Nicasio I. Alcantara (D) 10,000 3,622,000 Filipino  0.189
Common Honorio A. Poblador III 

(D)    299,000 0 Filipino  0.016
Common Presentacion S. Ramos (D) 1,250 770,000 Filipino 0.040
Common Christopher M. Gotanco 

(D) 48,600 2,454,634 Filipino 0.130
Common Gerard Anton S. Ramos 

(D) 1,000 0 Filipino <0.000
Common Adrian S. Ramos (D) 12,500 333,231 Filipino 0.018
Common AlexandraR. Padilla (D) 100 800 Filipino <0.000
Common Reynaldo E. Nazarea 

(D,O) 1,000 860,563 Filipino 0.045
Common Alessandro O. Sales (O)      0 0 Filipino 0
Common Isabelita L. Matela (O) 2,731 6,058 Filipino <0.000
Common Dennis V. Panganiban (O) 0 10,000 Filipino <0.000

 
As of December 31, 2020, the aggregate number of shares owned by the Company’s 
directors, Chief Executive Officer and four (4) most highly compensated executive officers, 
as a group, is 1,545,071,573 shares, or approximately 0.805% of the Company’s outstanding 
capital stock. 

 
(3) Voting Trust Holders of 5% or More 
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To the extent known to the Company, there is NO PERSON holding more than 5% of any 
class of the Company’s securities under a voting trust or similar agreement. 

 
(4) Changes in Control 

 
To the extent known to the Company, there are no arrangements, which may result in a 
change in control of the Company. 
 

 
Item 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions 
 
Related Party Transactions. There had been NO transaction during the last two (2) years to 
which the Company was or is to be a party in which any director or executive officer of the 
Company, or nominee for election as director, or owner of more than 10% of the Company’s 
voting stock, or voting trust holder of 10% or more of the Company’s shares, or any member of 
the immediate family (including spouse, parents, siblings, and in-laws) of any of these persons, 
had or is to have a direct or indirect material interest. 
 
In the ordinary and regular course of business, the Company had transactions with related parties 
(i.e. companies with shareholders common with the Company) during the last two (2) years 
consisting principally of advances to related parties. The identities of these related parties, 
including the amounts and details of the transactions are disclosed in Note 16 to the Company’s 
2020 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, a copy of which is included in this Annual 
Report. 
 

(a) Business purpose of the arrangement.  The business purpose of related party transaction 
is to address immediate working capital requirements of related parties (in case of 
advances to related parties). 
 

(b) Identification of the related parties’ transaction business with the registrant and nature of 
the relationship.  See Note 16 to the Company’s 2020 Audited Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

 
(c) How transaction prices were determined by parties. All transactions with related parties 

are based on prevailing market/commercial rates at the time of the transaction. 
 

(d) If disclosures represent that transactions have been evaluated for fairness, a description 
of how the evaluation was made. There are NO disclosures representing that the 
transactions with related parties have been evaluated for fairness inasmuch as the bases 
of all transactions with related parties were the prevailing market/commercial rates at 
the time of the transaction, or a valuation study conducted by a third party consultant 
over which neither the Company nor the related parties have control or influence 
whatsoever.  

 
(e) Any on-going contractual or other commitments as a result of the arrangement. NONE, 

other than the repayment of money lent or advanced. 
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(f) There were NO transactions with parties that fall outside the definition of “related 
parties” under SFAS/IAS No. 24. Neither were there any transactions with persons with 
whom the Company or its related parties have a relationship that enabled the parties to 
negotiate terms of material transaction that may not be available from other, more 
clearly independent parties on an arms’ length basis. 

 
 

PART IV – CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

(a) The Company uses the evaluation system established by the SEC in its 
Memorandum Circular No. 5 series of 2003, including the accompanying 
Corporate Governance Self Rating Form (CG-SRF) to measure or determine the 
level of compliance of the Board of Directors and top-level management with 
the Company’s Corporate Governance Manual. 

 
(b) The Company undertakes a self-evaluation process regularly in accordance with 

its Revised Manual on Corporate Governance (May 2017) and any deviation 
from the Company’s corporate Governance Manual is reported to the 
Management and the Board together with the proposed measures to achieve 
compliance. 

 
(c) The Company is in full compliance with global best practices on good corporate 

governance, applicable to it, as embodied in its Revised Manual on Corporate 
Governance (May 2017). 

 
1. The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for the Board and its 

employees, and is being assessed regularly to cope with the dynamics of 
the business. The Company has existing policies and procedures that 
can identify and resolve potential conflicts of interest. 

 
2. Employees and officers undergo professional development programs 

subject to meeting the criteria set by the Company. The Corporate 
Governance & Nominations Committee (CG&NC) is engaged, together 
with the Management Committee, in the Succession Planning of the 
Executive officers, including the President.  In the latter case, the 
CG&NC coordinates closely with the Chairman any and all activities 
involved in planning for the President’s succession.  

 
(d) The Company shall adopt improvement measures on its corporate governance as 

the exigencies of its business will require from time to time. 
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PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES 
 

Item 13. Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C 
 

(a) Exhibits - see Index to Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules 
(b) Reports on SEC Form 17-C – see List 

 
 

THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION 
LIST OF ITEMS REPORTED UNDER SEC FORM 17C 

 
 

Date of Report Description 
January 14, 2020 
 

List of Top 100 Stockholders as of 31 December 2019 

January 23, 2020 
 

Setting of Annual Stockholders’ Meeting 

February 03, 2020 
 
 

Update on Disbursements of Proceeds from Stock Rights 
Offerings 

March 12, 2020  Annual Verification of the Department of Energy 2020 

March 16, 2020 
 
 

Risk and Impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s 
business. 

June 01, 2020 Suspension of Production, SC14 C-1 (Galoc Block) 

June 09, 2020 Approval of 2019 Audited Financial Statements 

June 11, 2020 Postponement of Annual Stockholders’ Meeting 

June 15, 2020 
 

List of Stockholders as of Record Date March 18, 2020 

June 15, 2020 List of Top 100 Stockholders as of 31 March 2020  

July 07, 2020 List of Top 100 Stockholders as of 30 June  2020  

July 14, 2020 Notice of Annual Stockholders’ Meeting 

August 17, 2020 Results of Organizational and Annual Stockholders’ 
Meeting 2020 

August 28, 2020 Integrated Annual Corporate Governance Report 2019 

October 14, 2020 List of Top 100 Stockholders as of September 30, 2020 

December 09, 2020 
 

Certificate of Attendance on Corporate Governance 
Webinar 2020 

December 17, 2020 Extension of subscription of Call 
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THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION 
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES 

FORM 17-A, Item 7 
 

 Page No. 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
Statement of Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements  
Report of Independent Public Accountants  
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position  
    as of December 31,  2020, 2019 and 2018

 

Consolidated Statements of Income  
     For the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018

 
 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
     For the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018

 
 

Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity 
     For the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018

 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES  
Report of Independent Public Accountants on Supplementary 
Schedules 

 

Schedule I   Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for 
Dividend Declaration

 

Schedule II  Financial Ratios  
Schedule III Map of the Relationships of the Companies within the 

Group 
 

Schedule IV   Tabular Schedule of Effective Standards and 
Interpretations under the PFRS

 

Schedule V  Supplementary schedules required by Annex 68-E  
A Financial Assets  
B Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, 

Employees, Related Parties and Principal Stockholders 
 

C Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are 
eliminated during consolidation of Financial 
Statements 

 

D Intangible Assets – Other Assets  
E Long-term Debt  
F Indebtedness to Related Parties  
G Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers  
H Capital Stock  

 



THE PHILODRILL CORPORATIOH
QUAD ALPHA CENTRUM, 125 PIONEER, MANDALUYONG CITY, PHILIPPINES
IEL. NOS. 631-1801 TO 05 ; 631-8151/52 : FAX: {632) 531-8080 , (632) 631-s310

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
F'OR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of The Philodrill Corporation and Subsidiary is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements including the schedules attached therein, for the
years erded December 31,2020 and20t9, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporling
framework indicated therein, and for such intemal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatemen! whether due to
fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concem and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules attached

therein, and submits the same to the stockholders or members.

SyCip, Gorres, Velayo& Co., the independent auditor appointed by the stockholders, has audited the

financial statements of the company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its
report to the stockholders or members, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon
completion of such audit.

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer/President

Signed this 24th day of March2lZl

AlfredoC. Ramos

--v. 7vl\vva7v
Revnaldo E/Nazarea
Chief Financial Officer
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Sustainability 
 

 

Contextual InformationContextual InformationContextual InformationContextual Information
  

Company Details  
Name of Organization  
Location of Headquarters                    
Location of Operations                         
Report Boundary: Legal entities 
(e.g. subsidiaries) included in this

report*  
Business Model, including                  

Primary Activities, Brands, 

Products, and Services  
Reporting Period                                   
Highest Ranking Person                       

responsible for this report                   
 

 

*If you are a holding company, you could have an option whether to report on the 

or include the subsidiaries. However, please consider the principle of materiality when defining your 

report boundary. 
 

Materiality ProcessMateriality ProcessMateriality ProcessMateriality Process 
  

Explain how you applied the materiality principle (or the materiality process) in 
your material topics.  

 
The Philodrill Corporation recognizes 
management tool that will generate savings for the 
shareholder value. Philodrill is committed to 
essential to fuel our economy and improve living conditions.
 
Material topics were determined through the e
external) and rationalize the factors
affected the respondents’ lives
 
This Report will provide insight on the C
practices and what it does to manage social, environmental, a
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Sustainability Reporting Template

Contextual InformationContextual InformationContextual InformationContextual Information 

THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION 

                   8
TH

 F, Quad Alpha Centrum Bldg., 125 Pioneer St., Mandaluyong

                with active Service Contracts in NW, Palawan and Mindoro, Phils.                                                           

s THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION 

(e.g. subsidiaries) included in this  

                  Oil and Gas Exploration and Production 

                            2020  

                       ALFREDO C. RAMOS  

                  Chairman & President 

*If you are a holding company, you could have an option whether to report on the 

or include the subsidiaries. However, please consider the principle of materiality when defining your 

Explain how you applied the materiality principle (or the materiality process) in 

recognizes the value of sustainability reporting as a useful risk 
will generate savings for the Company and help attain its 

l is committed to providing access to affordable, reliable energy that is 
essential to fuel our economy and improve living conditions. 

aterial topics were determined through the engagement of stakeholders
factors that have the most impact, where it occurs or how such factors 

the respondents’ lives. 

This Report will provide insight on the Company’s risk management policies
it does to manage social, environmental, and economic sustainability.

 

1 

Reporting Template 

F, Quad Alpha Centrum Bldg., 125 Pioneer St., Mandaluyong 

with active Service Contracts in NW, Palawan and Mindoro, Phils.                                                           

 

*If you are a holding company, you could have an option whether to report on the holding company only 

or include the subsidiaries. However, please consider the principle of materiality when defining your 

Explain how you applied the materiality principle (or the materiality process) in identifying 

the value of sustainability reporting as a useful risk 
attain its goal of increased 

providing access to affordable, reliable energy that is 

takeholders (both internal and 
where it occurs or how such factors 

policies and governance 
nd economic sustainability. 
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Economic PerformanceEconomic PerformanceEconomic PerformanceEconomic Performance 
 

Direct Economic Value Generated and Distributed 

Disclosure Amount Units 

Direct economic value generated (revenue) 90,399,343 PhP 

Direct economic value distributed:   

    Operating costs 99,359,760 PhP 

  Employee wages and benefits 44,778,768 PhP 

  Payments to suppliers, other operating costs 40,176,245   PhP 

Dividends given to stockholders and interest payments to loan 

providers 0  

Taxes given to government 15,919,067 PhP 

Investments to community (e.g. donations, CSR) 0 PhP 
 
 

What is the impact and where  Which stakeholders are Management Approach 
 

does it occur? What is the  affected?  
 

organization’s involvement in the    
 

impact?    
 

Identify the impact and where it 

occurs (i.e., primary business 

operations and/or supply chain) 

Indicate involvement in the ipmact 

(i.e., caused by the organization or 

linked to impact through its 

business relationship) 

(e.g. employees, 

community, suppliers, 

government, vulnerable 

groups) 

What policies, commitments, goals and 

targets, responsibilities, resources, 

grievance mechanisms, and/or projects, 

programs, and initiatives do you have to 

manage the material topic? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The impact of economic 

performance is on the primary 

business operations of the 

Company. As the upstream O&G 

industry is a capital intensive 

business, strong economic 

performance means more projects 

are carried out. The impact is 

directly caused by the company as 

it is the measure of its 

performance in operating the 

business. 

Strong economic 

performance means that 

value is delivered to our 

shareholders, value is 

delivered through our 

services to society, 

employees are offered 

competitive salaries and 

benefits, obligations to 

suppliers and creditors 

are met, customer orders 

are fulfilled, Government 

gains revenues and the 

local communities 

receive investment. 

The Company implements Enterprise 

Risk Management (ERM). ERM provides 

reasonable assurance regarding the 

achievement of the Company’s 

objectives. Philodrill can identify, assess, 

respond and monitor the outcomes of 

the industry’s leading risk factors with an 

Enterprise Risk Management system in 

place. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

What are the Risk/s Identified? 
 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 
 

 
 

Identify risk/s related to material 

topic of the organization   

 

 

 

In the oil and gas industry, 

managing capital projects, in 

particular large capital projects, in a 

global environment is becoming 

increasingly complex. Oil and gas 

companies need to make strategic 

The Company itself, 

employees, suppliers and 

creditors, contractors 

Effective monitoring and reporting 

mechanisms are in place to continuously 

review and manage the exposure to the 

risks and opportunities 
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decisions about which projects 

should be developed first to ensure 

their company's best performance.  

 

1. Price Risk. The price of oil and 

gas is the primary factor in 

deciding whether a reserve is 

economically feasible. Basically, 

the higher the geological barriers 

to easy extraction, the more price 

risk a given project faces. This is 

because unconventional 

extraction usually costs more than 

a vertical drill down to a deposit. 

2. Supply and Demand Risk. 

Operations take a lot of capital 

and time to get going, and they 

are not easy to shut down when 

prices go south or to ramp 

up when they go north. The 

uneven nature of production is 

part of what makes the price of oil 

and gas so volatile. Other 

economic factors also play into 

this, as financial 

crises and macroeconomic factors 

can dry up capital or otherwise 

affect the industry independently 

of the usual price risks. 

 

3. Cost Risk. The more onerous 

the regulation and the more 

difficult the drill, the more 

expensive a project becomes.  

4. Operational Risk. Companies 

struggle to find and retain the 

qualified workers that they need 

to operate the field. 

What are the Opportunity/ies  Which stakeholders are Management Approach 
 

Identified?  affected?  
 

Identify the opportunity/ies related  
 

to material topic of the   
 

organization   
 

Good economic performance 

opens opportunities for the 

 The stockholders, 

employees, National 

Management implements rationalization 

of exploration projects, prioritizing those 
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Company to participate in more 

exploration projects and enter 

into Joint Venture agreements.  

 

Provides the Company resources 

to offer competitive 

compensation package and 

benefits for its employees, and 

share profit to its stockholders. 

But more importantly, the 

Government gains more revenues 

and better investments are 

returned back to the local 

communities. 

 

Government and the 

local community. 

within the medium-term prospects. In all 

its undertakings, tighter measures are 

employed to ensure efficient utilization of 

resources to minimize cost and 

dependence on outsourced services that 

are more costly. 
 

  
 

 
 

Climate-related risks and opportunities
15

 

 Governance  Strategy  Risk Management Metrics and Targets 

Disclose the 

organization’s 

governance around 

climate-related risks 

and opportunities 

Disclose the actual and 

potential impacts of 

climate-related risks and 

opportunities on 

the organization’s 

businesses, strategy, 

and financial planning 

where such information is 

material 

Disclose how the 

organization identifies, 
assesses, and manages 

climate-related risks 

Disclose the metrics 

and targets used to 

 assess and manage 

relevant climate- 

related risks and 

opportunities where 

such information is 

material 

  

  

  

The Philodrill’s Board of 

Directors ensures that a 

comprehensive, 

corporate-wide climate 

change mitigation or 

adaptation strategy is in 

place.  Executive 

Management must 

identify adaptation 

measures and 

opportunities to 

mitigate energy cost, 

carbon and carbon 

related regulatory 

measures. 

The most cost effective 

measures the Company 

can take to adapt to 

physical risks (to build 

resilience for climate 

changes which can no 

longer be avoided) and 

mitigate energy costs 

Philodrill is committed 

to protecting the 

environment. It works 

hard to cause no harm 

to people. The Company 

as Operator sets 

environmental 

standards in accordance 

with global best 

practices, which meet 

all regulatory 

requirements. 

The company’s 

standards cover its 

environmental 

performance including: 

managing emissions of 

greenhouse gases, using 

less energy more 

efficiently, flaring and 

burning off less gas 

during oil production, 

preventing spills and 

leaks of hazardous 

materials, using less 

The Company adheres to 

processes that assess and 

mitigate risks and support 

decision making. These 

processes include the 

following: 

 

Enterprise Risk 

Management.ERM 

process provides 

corporate oversight for 

identifying major risks to 

the Company and 

ensuring mitigation plans 

are in place. The ERM 

process includes risk 

review with executive 

management and the 

Board of Directors that 

identifies risks inherent in 

our business.  

 

Risks assessed through 

this process include 

The Company has not 

set targets for emissions 

reduction for the most 

recent years as most of 

its major assets are still 

in the exploration stage 

while Greenhouse Gas 

(GHG) emissions at the 

office has minimal 

impact to the 

environment.  

However, for the Galoc 

Operations, wherein 

Philodrill has a 

participating interest, 

GHG emission and gas 

flaring are being 

monitored and 

measured.  

The Company, once 

producing again will 

actively engage in direct 
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and carbon 

risks (reduce exposure) 

are then described 

based on observation 

of global best practices. 

These measures should 

not be considered in 

isolation but within the 

capital planning cycle of 

the Company.  

 

 

 

fresh water and 

conserving biodiversity 

wherever we operate. 

It encourages the 

Partners in the 

consortium to comply 

with the best standards. 

The Company works in 

partnership with the 

government (DOE, 

PCSD), Academics (UP 

Geological Society) and 

local community (El 

Nido) to maintain and 

sustain its high 

standards. 

financial, operational, 

geopolitical, commodity 

pricing, security, 

geological and 

technological as well as 

climate change risks.  

 

Strategic and business 

planning processes. The 

Mancom is responsible 

for managing the strategic 

and business planning 

processes at the Board’s 

direction. These 

processes are designed to 

ensure that our business 

remains resilient under a 

variety of circumstances, 

and they include 

examination of external 

points of view, ongoing 

assessment of the 

dynamics of the energy 

sector, monitoring of 

policy and regulatory 

developments, and 

examination of trends, 

such as advancements in 

technology and evolution 

of consumer preferences.  

 

Portfolio management. 

The Company manages its 

portfolio of assets to 

meet objectives in 

accordance with its 

strategic and/ or business 

plans. A decision to invest 

in an asset and add it to 

the Company’s portfolio is 

made based on the then-

current view of factors, 

including anticipated 

future cost, NPVs, market, 

pricing and regulatory 

conditions.  

and indirect monitoring 

of GHG emissions.  

 

Recommended Disclosures 

a

)

Describe the 

board’s oversight of 

climate-related 

risks and 

Describe the 

climate-related 

risks and 

opportunities the 

Describe the 

organization’s 

processes for 

identifying and 

a

)

Disclose the 

metrics used by the 

organization to 

assess climate- 
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 opportunities  organization has 

identified over the 

short, medium and 

long term 

 assessing climate- 

related risks 

 related risks and 

opportunities in 

line with its 

strategy and risk 

management 

process 

    

    

    

    

    

    
 
The Philodrill 

Corporation, through 

its Board of Directors,  

is committed to its goal 

of energy sufficiency, 

but remains focused on 

operating responsibly 

and safely. The Board 

meets regularly, on a 

monthly basis to 

discuss updates of 

company assets which 

includes climate-related 

concerns.  

During these meetings, 

decision-making issues 

that require top-level 

approval are presented. 

The management 

assures that the 

impacts on the 

environment (i.e., 

climate change) are 

carefully considered in 

the choices presented 

to the board. Updates 

on policies 

implemented, actions 

undertaken, and effects 

of these decisions are 

discussed with the 

board. 

 

 
As most the assets are 

still in the exploration 

stage, the bulk of the 

workload is tied in office 

works.  

Production of paper 

wastes is the most 

common short-term 

environmental risk the 

Company is facing. By 

going electronic, not only 

is the Company reducing 

paper wastes but also 

operational expenses.  

The more intense 

extreme rainfall events 

and other natural 

disasters were identified 

as affecting its 

employees in a short- 

term period. The flaring 

of natural gases in the 

Galoc asset emits tonnes 

of GHG into the 

atmosphere thus causing 

medium-term health 

hazards to the 

employees onboard the 

platform and long- term 

effect on global 

warming.  

 

 

 
During the last meeting 

for the year, Management 

discusses with the Board 

the work program and 

budget (WP&B) plans for 

the succeeding year. The 

Exploration program such 

as Geological & 

Geophysical 

activities are 

strategically scheduled all 

throughout the coming 

year. Management 

identifies possible 

environmental (including 

climate- related) risks that 

may impede the 

accomplishment of the 

said activities or cause 

any disruption in the 

operations. Guidance 

from the Board is sought 

on the implementation of 

cost-effective adaptation 

strategies. Previously 

collected data such as 

rainfall quantity, ocean 

current pattern, and gas 

emissions helps in 

forecasting risks that may 

arise during the 

implementation of G&G 

activities. The occurrence 

probability of these risks 

and the object which it 

will directly and indirectly 

affect are considered 

carefully. 

 
Philodrill’s operated 

blocks are strictly 

complying with RA 8749 

or the Philippine Clean 

Air Act of 1999 which has 

the Department of 

Environment and Natural 

Resources (DENR) as the 

lead agency. The quality 

and quantity of gas 

emissions during 

operations are compared 

to the standard limits set 

by the DENR.  

Philodrill adheres to the 

DOE standards 

concerning regulations in 

the energy industry. The 

Company regularly 

submits quarterly and 

annual operations 

reports and results of 

exploration activities of 

the Company’s operated 

service contract. The 

Company’s plans are also 

aligned with the 

department’s mission to 

be globally-competitive 

while improving the 

quality of life of Filipino 

communities.  

b

)

Describe 

management’s role 

in assessing and 

managing climate- 

related risks and 

opportunities 

Describe the 

impact of climate- 

related risks and 

opportunities on 

the organization’s 

businesses, 

Describe the 

organization’s 

processes for 

managing climate- 

related risks 

b

)

Describe the 

targets used by the 

organization to 

manage climate- 

related risks and 

opportunities and 
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  strategy and 

 financial planning. 

  performance 

against targets 
 

     

    

 Management provides 

the link between its 

employees and the host 

communities that are 

directly exposed to 

climate-related risks to 

the Board which is the 

decision-making body 

of the Company. 

Management is also 

responsible in providing 

immediate sound 

decisions and actions 

toward these risks. 

Management oversees 

all operations and 

assesses possible 

environmental impacts 

of the Company’s 

activities.  

 Philodrill is exposed to 

many weather related 

climate change risks that 

could result in 

construction delays, 

production downgrades 

or blow outs to 

decommissioning costs, 

if not managed well.  

Company activities are 

planned and scheduled 

accordingly to lessen 

climate-related risks 

(e.g., weather pattern) 

that will incur additional 

expenses. Environmental 

factors, such as the reuse 

of materials and 

appropriate disposal, are 

considered when closing 

down a site. 

 During the initial planning 

stages of our major 

projects, a screening 

process is implemented to 

identify potential 

environmental and social 

impacts. These may 

include impacts on 

sensitive areas and 

freshwater resources, as 

well as the prevalence of 

bribery and corruption in 

the LGU, local 

employment and 

community health and 

safety. The results are 

used to identify actions 

and mitigation measures 

and then implement 

these in project design, 

construction and 

operations. 

The Management team 

works hard to understand 

environmental and social 

sensitivities in the areas 

where we operate with 

the aim of avoiding, 

minimizing and mitigating 

any potential impacts. 

 The primary target of the 

Company is to lessen 

carbon footprint and the 

negative environmental 

impact of its exploration 

activities. Recycling is 

practiced in the office 

premises. Reusable items 

such as papers, 

newspapers, carton 

boxes, plastic bags, and 

plastic/glass bottles are 

either reused or if 

unrecyclable are sold and 

proceeds distributed to 

the staff. These 

measures that not only 

aid the employees in 

work but also benefits 

the Company by 

lessening operational 

expenses and providing 

additional income. 

Conservation of 

electricity and water is 

also a constant practice. 

The Company is 

contributing less air 

pollutants with the 

efficient use of GHG- 

emitting equipment.  

Management ensures 

that the facilities of 

producing oil fields are in 

good condition so that 

emissions of hazardous 

matters are at the 

minimum or acceptable 

limits.  

 

 

Describe the 

resilience of the 

organization’s 

strategy, taking 

into consideration 

different climate- 

related scenarios 

Describe how 

processes for 

identifying, 

assessing, and 

managing climate- 

related risks are 

integrated into the 
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  including a 2°C or 

lower scenario 

 organization’s 

overall risk 

management 

 

    

    

 

  The Company’s 

management and staff 

plan and create scenario 

analysis prior to 

implementation of 

projects. A contingency 

plan is always included in 

the programs presented 

to the board. Usually, an 

additional 10-20% of the 

total project budget and 

total number of working 

days is allocated as 

contingent measures.  

 

 Management practices a 

holistic approach in doing 

the Company’s overall risk 

management. After 

identification, assessment, 

and action preparation for 

the climate-related risks, 

integration with the other 

risks are done. A cause-

and- effect relationship is 

established on the risks 

associated with each 

other. 

G&G activities are 

undertaken during 

favorable weather 

window periods taking 

into consideration 

weather downtime, thus 

limiting risks and expenses 

and ensuring the safety of 

operations.  

  

 
 
 

 



9 

 

Procurement PracticesProcurement PracticesProcurement PracticesProcurement Practices 
 

Proportion of spending on local suppliers  

Disclosure   Quantity Units  
 

Percentage of procurement budget used for significant 

locations of operations that is spent on local suppliers Php37,383,702 93%  
 

     
 

     
 

What is the impact and where Which stakeholders are Management Approach   
 

does it occur? What is the affected?     
 

organization’s involvement in the      
 

impact?      
 

Identify the impact and where it 

occurs (i.e., primary business 

operations and/or supply chain) 

Indicate involvement in the impact 

(i.e., caused by the organization or 

linked to impacts through its 

business relationship) 

(e.g. employees, 

community, suppliers, 

government, vulnerable 

groups) 

What policies, commitments, goals and 

targets, responsibilities, resources, 

grievance mechanisms, and/or projects, 

programs, and initiatives do you have to 

manage the material topic? 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Localizing supply chain represents 

an opportunity to help reduce 

emissions and energy usage. Local 

supplies do not create large carbon 

footprints through overseas plane 

travel or long truck trips. This cuts 

down on fuel consumption and air 

pollution.  

Suppliers  

 

Foreign contractors are only engaged if 

there are no qualified or capable local 

suppliers available.  

 

 

 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are Management Approach   
 

 affected?     
 

Identify risk/s related to material      
 

topic of the organization      
 

Inability of local suppliers to meet 

the demand.  

 

 

 

 

Suppliers Management assesses the 

availability and competency 

of local suppliers. Foreign 

contractors are only 

engaged if there are no 

qualified or capable local 

suppliers available.  

 

 
 

What are the Opportunity/ies Which stakeholders are Management Approach  
 

Identified? affected?  
 

Identify the opportunity/ies related 

to material topic of the 

Organization 
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ENVIRONMENT 

The Company reduces shipping and 

storage cost while increasing 

revenue of the local economy by 

involving local suppliers.  

This presents opportunity to the 

Company to be more competitive 

in terms of its pricing of local crude 

oil produce and sold to refineries or 

end users.  

Suppliers and other oil 

and gas companies  

 

 The Company seeks and 

maintains mutually 

beneficial relationships with 

Suppliers that uphold the 

Company’s principles and 

core values.  

 

 

 
  

ENVIRONMENT 

 

Resource ManagementResource ManagementResource ManagementResource Management 
 

Energy consumption within the organizationEnergy consumption within the organizationEnergy consumption within the organizationEnergy consumption within the organization:::: (Annual Consumption at the Principal office)     

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Energy consumption (renewable sources) 0 GJ 

Energy consumption (gasoline) 0 GJ 

Energy consumption (LPG) N.A. GJ 

Energy consumption (diesel) 49.43 GJ 

Energy consumption (electricity) 48,240 (4,020/month) kWh 

*Electricity consumption at the principal office for 2020  
 

Energy consumption on site: (average monthly consumption) 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Energy consumption (renewable sources) 0 GJ 

Energy consumption (gasoline) 0 GJ 

Energy consumption (LPG) N.A. GJ 

Energy consumption (diesel) 561.46/month GJ 

Energy consumption (electricity) N/A (off grid) kWh 

*Combined data from P&A (8days, Sept. 25 - Oct. 4, 2020) and Galoc 

 

 

Reduction of energy consumptionReduction of energy consumptionReduction of energy consumptionReduction of energy consumption  
 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Energy reduction (gasoline) 2.17/mo GJ 

Energy reduction (LPG) N.A. GJ 

Energy reduction (diesel) 446.63 GJ 

Energy reduction (electricity) 1,270 kWh 

Energy reduction (gasoline) N.A. GJ 
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What is the impact and where 

does it occur? What is the 

organization’s involvement in the 

impact? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 
 

 

 

 

 

Identify the impact and where it 

occurs (i.e., primary business 

operations and/or supply chain) 

Indicate involvement in the impact 

(i.e., caused by the organization or 

linked to impacts through its 

business relationship) 

(e.g. employees, 

community, suppliers, 

government, vulnerable 

groups) 

What policies, commitments, goals and 

targets, responsibilities, resources, 

grievance mechanisms, and/or projects, 

programs, and initiatives do you have to 

manage the material topic? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Energy directly impacts the 

Company’s operations. Energy 

resources are vital and necessary to 

the daily operations of the oil fields. 

 

Rationalization of energy 

consumption involves the 

Company, its employees and 

contractors both onsite (field 

operations) and offsite (office site). 

 

Continuous reduction of energy 

consumption is being done through 

implementation of energy 

conservation measures.  

Employees, contractors, 

JV partners, community 

Philodrill is committed to using less 

energy and more efficiently, flaring and 

burning off less gas during oil production. 

It encourages Partners in joint ventures 

to comply with global standards and best 

practices.  

The Company is also implementing cost-

cutting measures resulting to the proper 

monitoring of and reduction in general & 

administrative expenses.  

 

 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 
 

 

 

Identify risk/s related to material   
 

topic of the organization   
 

Inefficient use of equipment 

resulting to higher energy 

consumption.  

 

 

Employees, personnel 

working on site 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Continuous monitoring and constant 

reminder to company employees of 

efficient use of office equipment.  

Orient maintenance staff on the schedule 

of switching on and off of lights, aircon, 

workstations, and other electrical 

equipment.  

Encourage employees to car pool, if 

possible, to save on gasoline/diesel 

Facilities at site are well maintained and 

kept at best condition to work efficiently. 
 

What are the Opportunity/ies Which stakeholders are Management Approach 
 

Identified? affected?  
 

Identify the opportunity/ies related 

to material topic of the 

organization  

  

 

The Company will assess the impact Employees Continuous assessment of practicality 
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of implementing alternative work 

scheme including an option to work 

from home to decrease operational 

costs and increase employees’ 

productivity by minimizing travel 

time. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

and viability of implementing alternative 

work scheme.  

 

 

Water consumption within the organization (off site – Office)  

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Water withdrawal No data Cubic meters 

Water consumption 372 Cubic meters 

Water recycled and reused 0 Cubic meters 

 
 
 
Water consumption on site (Palawan) 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Water withdrawal n/a (with own 

desalination/water 

maker) 

Cubic meters 

 

Water consumption 4/day Cubic meters 

Water recycled and reused 0 Cubic meters 

*Note that we are manufacturing/making our own fresh water that was converted from the sea water within the area. 
 

 

 

What is the impact and where Which stakeholders are Management Approach 
 

does it occur? What is the affected?  
 

organization’s involvement in the   
 

impact?   
 

   
 

Identify the impact and where it 

occurs (i.e., primary business 

operations and/or supply chain) 

Indicate involvement in the impact 

(i.e., caused by the organization or 

linked to impacts through its 

business relationship) 

(e.g. employees, 

community, suppliers, 

government, vulnerable 

groups) 

What policies, commitments, goals and 

targets, responsibilities, resources, 

grievance mechanisms, and/or projects, 

programs, and initiatives do you have to 

manage the material topic? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

As the country experienced water 

crisis in 2019, the Company has 

been prioritizing water 

management, so as not to 

contribute further to the depletion 

of our water resources.  

At the Platform, we use reverse 

osmosis in seawater desalination to 

produce clean water that can be 

used for drinking, bathing, food 

preparation, and other general 

purposes. 

Community, Employees, 

and personnel working in 

the platforms, 

 

The Company educates and constantly 

reminds its employees on the efficient 

use of water.  

Reprocessing of seawater to produce 

clean, safe, and fresh water to be self-

sufficient, instead of relying on water 

tank refilling by supply vessels, which will 

entail additional logistical processes is 

continuously being implemented. 
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What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 
 

 

 

Identify risk/s related to material   
 

topic of the organization   
 

Within the office premises, some 

personnel are unaware that they 

irresponsibly use water facilities 

resulting to higher consumption.  

 

 

 

 

 

Employees The Company constantly reminds its 

employees to practice water 

conservation.  

Management lowered the water pressure 

in the comfort rooms, to control water 

flow and avoid spillage.  

Also, management ensures that there are 

no faucet and toilet leaks to avoid water 

wastage by conducting regular 

inspections 
 

What are the Opportunity/ies Which stakeholders are Management Approach 
 

Identified? affected?  
 

   
 

Identify the opportunity/ies related   
 

to material topic of the   
 

organization   
 

Efficient water consumption leads 

to financial savings, which can be 

appropriated by the Company for 

other purposes.  

Additionally, water conservation 

helps the community as a whole in 

prolonging the water supply 

especially during dry seasons from 

March to May wherein the water in 

reservoirs falls below normal level.  

Employees and Building 

Management  

 

The Company constantly reminds 

employees to use water responsibly.  

 

 

 

Ecosystems and biodiversity (whether in upland/watershed or coastal/marine)  

Disclosure Quantity Units  

Operational sites owned, leased, managed in, or adjacent to, 

protected areas and areas of high biodiversity value outside 

   protected areas 

2 sites, Matinloc and 

AP platform.  

 

Location:   

Matinloc Terminal is 

located in South China 

Sea 28 NM Northwest 

of El Nido Airport at 

Latitude 11° 28’46.9” 

North and Longitude 

119° 01’18.17’ East. 

 

Nido Terminal is 

located in South China 

Sea 35 NM West 

Southwest of El Nido   
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Airport at latitude: 

11°02’ 19.0” North 

and Longitude: 118° 

49’ 57.4” East. 

Habitats protected or restored   none ha  

IUCN17 Red List species and national conservation list 

species with habitats in areas affected by operations 
 (list)   
    

*Note that we have a full copy of the Marine Protected Areas (MPA) for the whole Occidental Mindoro and 

Palawan with given locations and areas. Species are generally referred to as fishes, corals, seaweeds and the like. 
 

  

What is the impact and where Which stakeholders are Management Approach  

organization’s involvement in the affected?  
impact?   

 

Identify the impact and where it 

occurs (i.e., primary business 

operations and/or supply chain) 

Indicate involvement in the impact 

(i.e., caused by the organization or 

linked to impacts through its 

business relationship) 

(e.g. employees, 

community, suppliers, 

government, vulnerable 

groups) 

What policies, commitments, goals and 

targets, responsibilities, resources, 

grievance mechanisms, and/or projects, 

programs, and initiatives do you have to 

manage the material topic? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Company ensures strict 

compliance with environmental 

laws and policies by securing 

required permits from the DOE, 

DENR-EMB.  
 

Philodrill supports the conservation 

and preservation of  protected 

areas that house our country’s rich 

natural resources (both flora and 

fauna). 
 

Employees, Marine Crew 

onboard the Vessels, 

Personnel working at the 

platforms and local 

Communities adjacent to 

or within the SCs 

The Company secures a Certificate of Non 

Coverage (CNC) or  Environmental 

Compliance Certificate (ECC), whichever 

is applicable, from the Environmental 

Management Bureau (EMB) of the DENR 

to cover all its exploration activities, as 

well as Strategic Environmental Plan 

Clearance (SEPC) from Palawan Council 

for Sustainable Development (PCSD). 

 

1. Service Contract 6A – Octon Block 

• Certificate of Non-Coverage 

issued by the DENR – 

Environmental Management 

Bureau to Pitkin Petroleum Plc – 

SC 6A Geophysical Surveys (2D 

and 3D Seismic) and Exploration 

Program on June 6, 2012 

• Strategic Environment Plan (SEP) 

Clearance issued by the Palawan 

Council for Sustainable 

Development to Philodrill and 

DOE – Oil and Gas Exploration 

Project on SC 6A – on May 26, 

2016 

2. Service Contract 74  

• Strategic Environment Plan 

Clearance issued by PCSD to 

Pitkin Petroleum/ Philodrill 

Corporation on August 27 2014 
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• Strategic Environment Plan 

Clearance issued by PCSD to 

Philex Petroleum/ 

Philodrill/PNOC-Exploration 

Corporation on May 24, 2016 

3. Service Contract 14 C-1 – Galoc  

• Strategic Environment Plan 

Clearance issued by PCSD and 

concurred by DENR for the Galoc 

Field Area Development Project 

on December 15, 2016 

• Environmental Compliance 

Certificate issued by DENR 

(signed by Sec. Angelo Reyes) on 

August 30, 2006.   The ECC 

coverage specified the “Oil 

Development and Production of 

Galoc and Octon Fields” 

4. Service Contract 53 – Onshore 

Mindoro 

• Certificate of Non-Overlap of any 

Ancestral Domain/Land of 

Indigenous Cultural Communities 

issued by the National 

Commission on Indigenous 

People (NCIP) Region 1V on 

September 22, 2014 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 
 

 

 

Identify risk/s related to material   
 

topic of the organization   
 

For the fieldworks, marine and land 

seismic and gravity surveys, drilling 

and production activities, the risk 

include the disturbance of local 

ecosystem in the area (i.e. cutting 

of trees, oil spill, improper disposal 

of large volumes of saline water, 

and gas flaring). 

 

 
 

 

 

Employees, Marine Crew 

onboard the Vessels, 

Personnel working at the 

platforms and local 

Communities adjacent to 

or within the SCs 

The Company strictly abides with 

Environmental laws and policies. The 

exploration, production and development 

activities are being accomplished with 

minimum or no detrimental impacts to 

flora and fauna, marine and onshore 

environment, soils, surface, ground, and 

marine waters. Regular Health, Safety, 

Security and Environment (HSSE) 

meetings are being conducted during 

onshore and offshore operations. The 

Company conducts Bathymetric Survey to 

determine the shallow water areas or 

pinnacles to be avoided during seismic 

surveys.  

 

The P&A of production wells in SC 14A 

and SC 14B in 2018 and 2019 were 

accomplished with no significant impact 
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Environmental impact managementEnvironmental impact managementEnvironmental impact managementEnvironmental impact management 
 

Air Emissions 
 
GHG  

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Direct (Scope 1) GHG Emissions  Tonnes 

  CO2e 

Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG Emissions  Tonnes 

  CO2e 

Emissions of ozone-depleting substances (ODS)  Tonnes 

*No data gathered  for Matinloc and Nido fields since we are non-operational, the sites were completely plugged 

and abandoned  in 2020.  

 

 

 

 

 

to the environment and offshore waters. 

Some of the platforms were stripped of 

equipment and materials that were 

transported onshore for later disposal. 

With regard to the SC 14C-1, Galoc field 

operations, Oil Spill Contingency Plans are 

in place in case of any untoward 

incidents. Produced water and petroleum 

wastes are being monitored in 

compliance with the standard acceptable 

amount defined by the DENR. Used diesel 

is being monitored to ensure that there is 

no spillage. 

What are the Opportunity/ies 

Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 
 

 

 

Identify the opportunity/ies related   
 

to material topic of the   
 

Organization   
 

Decrease of negative 

environmental impact while 

minimizing incurred operational 

cost by partnering with other 

companies that provide exploration 

services within adjacent areas. In 

the office, decrease environment 

impact and CO2 imprint by going 

paperless/electronic. In offshore 

operations, JV partners devise ways 

to repurpose old platforms (they 

were converted as defense outpost 

of the government) instead of 

building or manufacturing a new 

one. 

Local communities 

adjacent or within the 

SCs, Employees, and Third 

Party Contractors 

The SC 14 JV turned over the Nido and 

Matinloc platforms to the DOE in 

December 2019 so that they can be used 

by the DND-AFP for national defense, 

instead of creating a new outpost.  
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What is the impact and where Which stakeholders are Management Approach 
 

does it occur? What is the affected?  
 

organization’s involvement in the   
 

impact?   
 

Identify the impact and where it 

occurs (i.e., primary business 

operations and/or supply chain) 

Indicate involvement in the impact 

linked to impacts through its 

business relationship) 

(e.g. employees, 

community, suppliers, 

government, vulnerable 

groups) 

What policies, commitments, goals and 

targets, responsibilities, resources, 

grievance mechanisms, and/or projects, 

programs, and initiatives do you have to 

manage the material topic? 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

At the office, usage of air 

conditioning (AC) systems that 

release chlorofluorocarbons (CFCs) 

and hydrochlorofluorocarbons 

(HFCs) which are GHGs that trap 

heat and cause depletion of the 

ozone layer.  

 

Natural gases (i.e. methane (CH4), 

ethane, propane, butane, and 

other heavier components), which 

are GHG and VOCs, produced in the 

Galoc field are flared out as these 

are not economical to be 

developed and also pose safety and 

health hazards (i.e. major blowout 

accident leading to destruction and 

fatality) if not attended properly.  

 

Flaring natural gases results to 

byproducts or GHGs such as CO, 

CO2, VOCs, NOX, SOX, and other air 

pollutants 

Employees of Philodrill 

and personnel onboard 

the platform, and nearby 

communities 

The Company regulates its AC systems 

to lessen its power consumption. Out of 

twenty two (22) AC systems pre-

installed in the office, only twelve (12) 

are regularly in operation during work 

hours (8:00- 17:00). These units are 

those near work desks occupied by the 

Company’s employees. As an 

alternative, Management has opted to 

purchase AC systems with HFCs 

refrigerants instead of CFCs, since the 

former have lesser detrimental effects 

to the environment. 

 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach   
 

  
 

Identify risk/s related to material      
 

topic of the organization      
 

Emission of GHG into the environment 

 

HFCs represent only a small portion 

of the total GHG emissions. 

However, they trap heat in the 

atmosphere as much as CO2. 

 

Although flaring/burning of natural 

gases emits a number of pollutants 

in the environment, it is less 

hazardous as compared to venting 

which is directly releasing natural 

gases into the atmosphere. Large 

amounts of released natural 

Employees of Philodrill 

and personnel onboard 

the platform, and nearby 

communities 

 Together with the reduced usage of AC 

units in the office, routine check and 

maintenance are also being 

implemented to ensure efficiency of the 

AC systems.  

 

To prevent major blowout accidents, 

flaring is favored by the management 

than venting off natural gases. 
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gases/GHGs may cause health 

hazards to the platform’s crew and 

contribute to ozone destruction 

and global warming. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach  
 

Identified?  
 

Identify the opportunity/ies related      
 

to material topic of the      
 

Organization      
 

In the office, decrease environment 

impact and CO2 footprint by going 

electronic. Less electricity 

consumption brought about by the 

minimal use of AC units and the 

cost-effective performance 

resulting from the regular 

maintenance will lead to savings 

that can be allocated to other 

company expenses.  

 

At the site, proposal to use a device 

which could reduce the gas flaring 

is seriously being considered. 

Employees The Company is practicing energy 

conservation measures. Philodrill is 

implementing paperless approach to 

certain transactions to minimize paper 

consumption and CO2 emission during 

printing and photocopying. Although the 

abovementioned energy conservation 

measures can be considered basic with 

minimal effect to the environment, 

Philodrill believes that this effort will still 

be beneficial to the community and 

environment in the long run. 

 
 

 

 

 

Air pollutants      
 

        

Disclosure   Quantity Units  
 

NOx   142,360* kg  
 

SOx   1,454* kg  
 

Persistent organic pollutants (POPs)  None* kg  
 

Volatile organic compounds (VOCs)  228,440* kg  
 

Hazardous air pollutants (HAPs)   None* kg  
 

Particulate matter (PM)   280* kg  
 

*Data is from SC 14C-1 FPSO gas flaring and fuel combustion for the year 2020. No measured/reported POPs and 

HAPs in SC 14C-1. 

  
 

What is the impact and where 

does it occur? What is the 

organization’s involvement in the 

impact? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Identify the impact and where it 

occurs (i.e., primary business 

operations and/or supply chain) 

Indicate involvement in the impact 

(i.e., caused by the organization or 

linked to impacts through its 

business relationship) 

(e.g. employees, 

community, suppliers, 

government, vulnerable 

groups) 

What policies, commitments, goals 

and targets, responsibilities, 

resources, grievance mechanisms, 

and/or projects, programs, and 

initiatives do you have to manage 

the material topic? 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

NOx, SOx, VOCs, and PMs are products Employees onboard the In SC 14C-1 operations offshore,  
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of fuel combustion and ship emissions. 

These are released into the atmosphere 

and affect the ozone layer and 

contribute to global warming.  

 

In SC 14C-1, flaring of natural gases (i.e. 

methane (CH4), ethane, propane, 

butane and other heavier petroleum 

components) results to by-products or 

air pollutants such NOx, SOx, VOCs, and 

PM. Ethane and propane are the most 

abundant non-methane hydrocarbon 

compounds found in natural gas.  

platform, FPSO, and 

nearby communities 

International Convention for the 

Prevention of Pollution from Ships 

(MARPOL) guidelines are strictly 

enforced. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 

affected?  

Management Approach 

  
 

Identify risk/s related to material      
 

topic of the organization      
 

Abundant NOX and SOX released into 

the environment from ship 

emission/fossil fuel combustion causes 

acid deposition. These gaseous 

pollutants are the major components 

of acid rain and smog apart from its 

contribution to greenhouse effect and 

global warming. Although 

flaring/burning of gases emits certain 

pollutants in the environment, it is less 

hazardous as compared to venting 

which is directly releasing natural 

gases into the atmosphere. Large 

amounts of released natural gases 

may cause health hazards to the 

platform crew. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Employees onboard the 

platform, FPSO, and 

nearby communities 

 Strict implementation of the 

MARPOL guidelines to decrease 

ship emissions. FPSO/Ship engines 

are also properly maintained to 

avoid machine failures that could 

increase the ship’s intake of fossil 

fuel which in turn leads to an 

increase in combusted fuel. The 

management opted to do gas 

flaring rather than venting to 

minimize health hazards and 

accidents. 

 

 
 

What are the Opportunity/ies 

Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management 

Approach  

 

 
 

 

Identify the opportunity/ies related 

to material topic of the 

organization 

  

 
 

Strict compliance with the laws 

governing air and seas/water will enable 

the Company and Galoc JV to operate 

without interruption. Fines and 

penalties will also be avoided. A 

healthier and more conducive 

environment for the employees 

onboard the platform and FPSO. 

Employees onboard the 

platform/FPSO and 

nearby communities 

Strict compliance with the 

International Convention for the 

Prevention of Pollution from Ships 

(MARPOL) guidelines.  
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Effluents  

Disclosure   Quantity Units  

Total volume of water discharges   5,074,578.59 Cubic  

    meters  

Percent of wastewater recycled      >1 %  

*Note that majority of waste water produced from extraction of crude oil was treated before discharging overboard 

based on the accepted level of effluents set by the international standards and EMB. 

 

Only 253.69 m3 of wastewater was recycled as per Galoc report. 

  

What is the impact and where 

does it occur? What is the 

organization’s involvement in the 

impact? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach  

 

 

  

Identify the impact and where it 

occurs (i.e., primary business 

operations and/or supply chain) 

Indicate involvement in the impact 

(i.e., caused by the organization or 

linked to impacts through its 

business relationship) 

(e.g. employees, 

community, suppliers, 

government, vulnerable 

groups) 

What policies, commitments, goals and 

targets, responsibilities, resources, 

grievance mechanisms, and/or projects, 

programs, and initiatives do you have to 

manage the material topic? 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

Offshore International and National 

Guidelines for Wastewater 

Discharges to the surface and 

bottom of the sea should be 

followed, as to control pollution 

and to have minimal impact to the 

marine environment and 

ecosystem. Maximum defined 

contamination levels should be 

followed. 

Personnel at the platform, 

Fishermen, and 

Community 

In offshore petroleum operations of the 

Company, subsidiaries, and JV partners, 

the International Convention for the 

Prevention of Pollution from Ships 

(MARPOL) guidelines are strictly 

enforced. 

 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 
 

 

Identify risk/s related to material   
 

topic of the organization   
 

The effluents with oil and other 

toxic waste contents exceeding the 

acceptable amount set by the 

MARPOL guidelines will 

contaminate the sea and sea 

bottom. This will cause damage to 

marine flora and fauna and can 

possibly cause related health 

implications to the community. 
 

 

 

 

Personnel at the platform, 

Fishermen, and 

Community 

Strict implementation of safety and 

environmental standards of the JV 

consortium. In case of untoward 

incidents, mitigation procedures are in 

place. At the FPSO vessel and platforms, 

produced water is analyzed and 

discharged overboard if it has less than 

15 ppm of oil content. If the produced 

water exceeds the 15 ppm allowable 

limit, procedures under the Oil Spill 

Contingency Plan are carried out to treat 

the water before disposal. 
 

What are the Opportunity/ies 

Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 
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Environmental Environmental Environmental Environmental compliancecompliancecompliancecompliance  
Non-compliance with Environmental Laws and Regulations 
 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Total amount of monetary fines for non-compliance with 0 PhP 

environmental laws and/or regulations   

No. of non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with 0 # 

environmental laws and/or regulations   

No. of cases resolved through dispute resolution mechanism 0 # 

 

 

 

What is the impact and where 

does it occur? What is the 

organization’s involvement in the 

impact? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 
 

 

 

 

   
 

Identify the impact and where it 

occurs (i.e., primary business 

operations and/or supply chain) 

Indicate involvement in the impact 

(i.e., caused by the organization or 

linked to impacts through its 

business relationship) 

(e.g. employees, 

community, suppliers, 

government, vulnerable 

groups) 

What policies, commitments, goals and 

targets, responsibilities, resources, 

grievance mechanisms, and/or projects, 

programs, and initiatives do you have to 

manage the material topic? 

 

Philodrill is serious in complying with 

Environmental Laws and Policies 

Employees and Community 

adjacent or within the SCs 

Philodrill acquired CNC/PCC from EMB-

DENR to cover its exploration activities, 

as well as SEPC from PCSD as follows: 

1. Contract 6A – Octon Block 

• Certificate of Non-Coverage issued 

by the DENR – Environmental 

Management Bureau to Pitkin 

Petroleum Plc – SC 6A Geophysical 

Surveys (2D and 3D Seismic) and 

Exploration Program on June 6, 

2012 

• Strategic Environment Plan (SEP) 

Clearance issued by the Palawan 

Council for Sustainable 

Development to Philodrill and DOE 

– Oil and Gas Exploration Project 

on SC 6A – on May 26, 2016 

2. Service Contract 74  

• Strategic Environment Plan 
 

Identify the opportunity/ies related 

to material topic of the 

organization 

  
 

  
 

  
 

Some produced formation water or 

effluent is being reprocessed and 

used onboard. 

 

Marine crew at the FPSO, 

Fishermen, and 

Community 

Reprocessed or treated water discharges 

onboard by Nido/Matinloc and Galoc 

consortium can be utilized for other 

general purposes in the vessel or 

platform. 
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Clearance issued by PCSD to Pitkin 

Petroleum/ Philodrill Corporation 

on August 27 2014 

• Strategic Environment Plan 

Clearance issued by PCSD to Philex 

Petroleum/ Philodrill/PNOC-

Exploration Corporation on May 

24, 2016 

3. Service Contract 14 C-1 – Galoc  

• Strategic Environment Plan 

Clearance issued by PCSD and 

concurred by DENR for the Galoc 

Field Area Development Project on 

December 15, 2016 

• Environmental Compliance 

Certificate issued by DENR (signed 

by Sec. Angelo Reyes) on August 

30, 2006.   The ECC coverage 

specified the “Oil Development and 

Production of Galoc and Octon 

Fields” 

4. Service Contract 53 – Onshore 

Mindoro 

• Certificate of Non-Overlap of any 

Ancestral Domain/Land of 

Indigenous Cultural Communities 

issued by the National Commission 

on Indigenous People (NCIP) 

Region 1V on September 22, 2014 

 
What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Identify risk/s related to material 

topic of the organization 

  

  

Non-compliance with 

environmental laws and regulations 

might lead to imposition of 

penalties and fines, or even to the 

extent of cancellation of the SC 

Employees and Company The Company continues strict adherence 

to environmental laws and regulations. 

What are the Opportunity/ies 

Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Identify the opportunity/ies related 

to material topic of the 

organization 

  

  

  

Philodrill management consistently 

maintains an environmentally, 

ergonomically, and legally 

compliant operations 

Employees and 

Community 

The Company adheres strictly to 

environmental laws and regulations. 
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SOCIAL 
 

Employee ManagementEmployee ManagementEmployee ManagementEmployee Management 
 

Employee Hiring and Benefits 
 
Employee data  

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Total number of employees
18

 26   # 

a.  Number of female employees 17 # 

b.  Number of male employees 9 # 

Attrition rate
19

 0 rate 

Ratio of lowest paid employee against minimum wage 2:1 ratio 

 

 

Employee benefits  

List of Benefits Y/N % of female employees  % of male employees 

  who availed for the  who availed for the 

  year  year 

SSS Y  36%  33% 

PhilHealth Y  0  0 

Pag-ibig Y  8%  33% 

Parental leaves Y  -  - 

Vacation leaves Y  100%  100% 

Sick leaves Y  24%  0% 

Medical benefits (aside from Y  100%  100% 

PhilHealth)      

Housing assistance (aside from Pag- N  -  - 

ibig)      

Retirement fund (aside from SSS) Y  6%  22% 

Further education support Y  -  - 

Company stock options Y  -  - 

Telecommuting Y  100%  100% 

Flexible-working Hours Y  18%  44% 

(Others)      

   

What is the impact and where does it occur? What 

is the organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 

Identify the impact and where it occurs (i.e., primary 

business operations and/or supply chain  

 

Indicate involvement in the impact (i.e., caused by the 

organization or linked to impacts through its business 

relationship) 

What policies, commitments, goals and targets, 

responsibilities, resources, grievance mechanisms, 

and/or projects, programs, and initiatives do you 

have to manage the material topic? 
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Provides assistance in facilitating and processing of the 

applications. The Company ensures regular and timely 

remittance of the employee’s monthly premiums. Philodrill 

provides assistance to employees in facilitating and 

processing of the applications when availing other SSS and 

Pag-Ibig benefits. 

 
 

The Company considers its people its greatest 

asset. Employees are provided with benefits 

packages (i.e. Maternity Benefit, Sickness Benefit 

and, Salary Loans) along with a wide range of 

learning and professional development 

opportunities to help them achieve their full 

potential. Benefits provided for the employees 

are as follows: 1. Base Salary; 2. Medical 

Coverage for Employees and their spouses and 

dependents; 3. Employees’ Annual Medical 

Check-Ups and HMO; 4. Life and Accident 

Insurance; 5. Educational assistance; 6. Annual 

Vacation Leave – 15 days; 7. Annual Sick Leave – 

15 days; and 8. Other allowances 

(transportation, rice, mobile phone). The 

Company also promotes work-life balance and 

the welfare of the employees. Philodrill 

advocates the rights of female workers in the 

office without bias and discrimination. 

Additionally, the Company adheres to the Magna 

Carta of Women (RA 9710) and Solo Parent 

Welfare Act of 2000 (RA 8972). 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

Identify risk/s related to material topic of the 

organization 

 

 

Non-adherence to providing benefits mandated by the 

government is a violation of the law and will subject the 

Company to civil and criminal liabilities in addition to 

revocation of license to operate. 

All employees enter into labor contracts for 

legal employment with the Company. The 

Company exercises check-and-balance 

practices to ensure that various policies are 

properly implemented. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

Identify the opportunity/ies related to material topic of the 

organization  

The Company is considering telecommuting or work 

from home arrangements. 
 

Work from home arrangement decreases operational 

expenses of the Company and increases employees’ 

work efficiency. 

The Company prioritizes management of its 

employees to ensure that it maintains a high 

performing workforce that is at par with the 

best in the industry. 

 

Employee Training and Development  

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Total training hours provided to employees   

a. Female employees 168 hours 

b. Male employees 72 hours 

Average training hours provided to employees   

a. Female employees 40 hours/employee 

b. Male employees 24 hours/employee 
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What is the impact and where does it occur? What Management Approach 
 

is the organization’s involvement in the impact?  
 

Identify the impact and where it occurs (i.e., primary 

business operations and/or supply chain) 

Indicate involvement in the impact (i.e., caused by the 

organization or linked to impacts through its business 

relationship) 

What policies, commitments, goals and 

targets, responsibilities, resources, grievance 

mechanisms, and/or projects, programs, and 

initiatives do you have to manage the material 

topic? 

 

 

 

 

Philodrill exerts effort to attract, motivate, develop and 

retain the best local talent and equip our people with the 

right skills for the future. The Company’s performance 

and ability to thrive in this environment depend on it. 

 

The onshore and offshore petroleum competency 

requirement is complex and requires high standard of 

safety and proficiency. Philodrill believes that its 

employees are the main asset of the Company and 

continuous training and development should be 

implemented. 

Technical personnel are attending SEAPEX 

meetings/seminars both local and abroad, as 

well as annual Philippine Geological 

Conferences. A Basin Analysis training course 

was attended by a Philodrill geologist, 

together with other geoscientists from local 

petroleum operators. HSSE trainings such as 

First Aid and Basic Life Saving Trainings are 

attended by assigned personnel every two 

years.  

 

Earthquake and fire drills are also  

implemented by the Company 
 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 
 

 

Identify risk/s related to material topic of the  
 

organization  
 

Globally, the petroleum industry is experiencing a 

downturn, which caused a slowdown in overall 

operations and sustenance of personnel training and 

development. 
 

The training and development budget will be 

realigned in response to the oil price crash. 

Our personnel are encouraged to take 

advantage of free webinar courses provided by 

technical experts. 
 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 
 

Identify the opportunity/ies related to material topic  
 

of the organization  
 

While petroleum operations are slowing down, the 

Company should take this opportunity to avail of training 

which is much cheaper if done locally with other 

petroleum operators. Also, online trainings are cheaper 

as they will not require travel and accommodation costs. 

HSSE trainings should be attended by all personnel with 

different definitions of safety standards. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Cooperation with other Petroleum Exploration 

Companies in organizing an international 

training course but is conducted locally.  

 

First aid training by the Red Cross should be 

attended by employees. The Company looks 

for opportunities for inexpensive local or 

online training if available. 

 

Additionally, technical personnel are 

participating on free online courses offered by 

petroleum experts. 
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Diversity and Equal Opportunity 
  

Disclosure Quantity Units 

% of female workers in the workforce 17 65% 

% of male workers in the workforce 9 35% 

Number of employees from indigenous communities and/or  # 

vulnerable sector*   
 

*Vulnerable sector includes, elderly, persons with disabilities, vulnerable women, refugees, migrants, 

internally displaced persons, people living with HIV and other diseases, solo parents, and the poor or the base 

of the pyramid (BOP; Class D and E). 
 

What is the impact and where does it occur? What Management Approach 
 

is the organization’s involvement in the impact?  
 

  
 

Identify the impact and where it occurs (i.e., primary 

business operations and/or supply chain) 

Indicate involvement in the impact (i.e., caused by the 

organization or linked to impacts through its business 

relationship) 

What policies, commitments, goals and 

targets, responsibilities, resources, grievance 

mechanisms, and/or projects, programs, and 

initiatives do you have to manage the 

material topic? 

 

 

 

 

 

Company activities such as hiring, promotion, and 

compensation are conducted without regard to race, color, 

ethnicity, religion, national origin, gender, gender identity 

or expression, sexual orientation, marital status, 

dependents, genetics, disability, age, social class, or 

political views. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

The management of Philodrill is committed 

to respecting people’s differences and 

creating an inclusive workplace culture. It 

does not tolerate any kind of harassment or 

prejudice. In order to respect and value the 

diversity of the employees and all with whom 

the Company do business, managers are 

required to ensure that the working 

environment is free from any form of 

harassment and discrimination. Philodrill 

advocates the rights of female workers in the 

office without bias and discrimination. 

Additionally, the Company adheres to the 

Solo Parent Welfare Act of 2000 (RA 8972) 

and the Magna Carta for Disabled Persons 

(RA 7277). The company’s board diversity 

policy can be found in the Company’s website 

through this link: 

https://philodrill.com/documents14/ov_diver

sity_policy.pdf 
 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 
 

Identify risk/s related to material topic of the 

organization 

 

 

The Company has not identified any violation relating to 

diversity and equal opportunity. 
 

All employees are provided with equal career 

opportunities and recognize that people 

bring different skill qualities to the work 

place. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

Identify the opportunity/ies related to material topic  

of the organization  

As at March 31 2020, the Company has 27 employees The Company will continue to promote 
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comprising 16 females and 11 males. The Company will 

continue to encourage: - greater female participation; and 

- executive senior professional employees to look for 

mentoring opportunities for more junior employees to gain 

valuable insights into the Company and the oil & gas 

industry, generally. Diversity creates goodwill within the 

community and within the industry. 

inclusiveness to help break down barriers and 

reduce the fear of being rejected, not only for 

who the employees are, but also for the ideas 

they voice. Continuous hiring of both local 

and foreign consultants for the company’s 

exploration projects. 

 

 

Workplace Conditions, Labor Standards, and Human Rights 
 

Occupational Health and Safety  

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Safe Man-Hours 59,330* Man-hours 

No. of work-related injuries None # 

No. of work-related fatalities None # 

No. of work related ill-health None # 

No. of safety drills 0 # 

 
*figures indicated above are from 8th floor and 9th floor data only (Principal office) and 8 days P&A (from 
Nido AP Platform) 2020. Safe man hours data available are from July 2020 up to the 1st quarter of 2021 only 
since the implementation of UPOSHERR.  
 
 

What is the impact and where does it occur? What Management Approach 
 

is the organization’s involvement in the impact?  
 

Identify the impact and where it occurs (i.e., primary 

business operations and/or supply chain) 

Indicate involvement in the impact (i.e., caused by the 

organization or linked to impacts through its business 

relationship) 

What policies, commitments, goals and 

targets, 

responsibilities, resources, grievance 

mechanisms, 

and/or projects, programs, and initiatives do 

you 

have to manage the material topic? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Company and its Subsidiaries consistently foster a safe 

working environment. Philodrill implements employee 

health and safety measures and training programs that 

protect people from occupational hazards by preventing 

injury, illness, and fatality. 

The Company strictly complies with all 

relevant occupational health and safety laws 

and regulations. Philodrill aims to achieve a 

zero injury and fatality rate for its entire staff. 

Same is true with offshore operations of 

subsidiaries, which adhere to international 

HSSE policies.  

 

At the work site, first aid kits and fire 

extinguishing equipment are conspicuously 

located and properly maintained. To ensure 

emergency preparedness, staff participates in 

regular fire and earthquake evacuation drills. 

Regular first aid and lifesaving trainings are 

being attended by assigned safety officer at 

the office. 
 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

 

Identify risk/s related to material topic of the 

Organization 
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UN SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS 

No fatal cases, occupational injuries or incidents were 

recorded during the year at the office as well as in the 

field. Failure to manage workplace safety would negatively 

impact employee health and productivity. 
 

 

The Company enforces occupational health 

and safety protocols for the benefit of the 

employees, contractors, and host 

communities. 

 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 
 

Identify the opportunity/ies related to material topic  
 

of the organization  
 

By properly managing and implementing health and safety 

trainings, employees and contractors can handle their jobs 

safely for the benefit of the organization and all 

stakeholders. The Company aims to be up-to-date with 

current best practices in HSSE. 

 

The Company will continue to provide the 

necessary equipment, training, and resources 

to enable employees and contractors to work 

safely. Philodrill will consistently encourage 

and empower employees by letting them 

attend safety trainings and retake training 

sessions, if necessary, to refresh their 

memory.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Product or Service Contribution to UN SDGs  
Key products and services and its contribution to sustainable development. 

 

Key Products and Societal Value / Potential Negative 

Management 

Approach 

Services Contribution to UN SDGs Impact of Contribution to Negative Impact 

Oil & Gas Exploration & 

Production 

Economic growth Environmental damage 

associated with field 

operations. 

Strict compliance to 

government laws and 

regulations on health 

and environmental 

safety. 

Oil & Gas Exploration & 

Production 
Decent work Health & Safety Conduct IEC campaign 

prior to the fieldwork. 

Oil & Gas Exploration & 

Production 

Welfare of vulnerable 

groups 

Traditional lifestyle of 

indigenous people are 

affected 

Careful planning, 

consultation 

management, 

accommodation and 

negotiation with the 

local community and 

indigenous groups. 
* None/Not Applicable is not an acceptable answer. For holding companies, the services and products of its 

subsidiaries may be disclosed. 
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